55>y ) Stockton-on-Tees Crime and Disorder
BOROUGH COUNCIL

www.stockton.gov.uk SeleCt Comm|ttee
Agenda
Date: Thursday 9 March 2023 at 4.30 pm
Venue: Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library, Stockton - on - Tees,
TS18 1TU

Cllr Pauline Beall (Chair)
Cllr Paul Weston (Vice-Chair)

Clir Kevin Faulks ClIr Clare Gamble
Clir Barbara Inman CliIr Steve Matthews JP
Clir Stephen Richardson Cllr Sylvia Walmsley

Clir Alan Watson

AGENDA

1 Evacuation Procedure (Pages 7 - 8)

2 Apologies for Absence

3 Declarations of Interest

4 Minutes
To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 9 (Pages 9 - 12)
February 2023

5 Action Plan for Agreed Recommendations - Review of (Pages 13 - 18)

Tree Asset Management

6 Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed (Pages 19 - 26)
Recommendations - Police Communications in
Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

7 Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed (Pages 27 - 32)
Recommendations - Public Spaces Protection Orders
(PSPOs)

8 Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed (Pages 33 - 44)
Recommendations - Bonfires on Public Land

9 SBC Overview and Scrutiny - End-of-Term Report (Pages 45 - 88)
2019-2023

Page 1



@ Stockton-on-Tees Crime and Disorder

BOROUGH COUNCIL

www.stockton.gov.uk SeleCt Comm|ttee
Agenda
10 Chair's Update and Select Committee Work (Pages 89 - 90)

Programme 2022-2023

Page 2



>>>» ) Stockton-on-Tees Crime and
BOROUGH COUNCIL .
www.stockton.gov.uk DISOI’der Se|eCt

Committee
Agenda

Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting

With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting
and/or have access to the agenda papers.

Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting, including the opportunities available for
any member of the public to speak at the meeting; or for details of access to the meeting for
disabled people, please

Contact:  Senior Scrutiny Officer, Gary Woods on email gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk

Page 3



@ StOthon'On'TeeS KEY - Declarable interests are:-

BOROUGH COUNCIL e Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s)

e Other Registerable Interests (ORI’s)
e Non Registerable Interests (NRI’s)

Members — Declaration of Interest Guidance

Does the matter directly relate to one of my DPIs [set out in Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
finances or wellbeing of one of my ORIs
(set out in Table 2)?

Does it directly relate to the
finances or wellbeing of me, a
relative or a close associate?

Does it affect the finances or

wellbeing of me, a relative, a

close associate or one of my
ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a
greater extent than most
people? And would a
reasonable person think my
judgement is clouded

Page 4



>>>» ) Stockton-on-Tees
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Table 1 - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Subject

Description

Employment,
office, trade,

profession or
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council)
made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election
expenses.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a
firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person
is a director* or

Contracts a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed;
and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does

Land and not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the

property councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another)
a right to occupy or to receive income.

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a

Licences month or longer.

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the council; and

Corporate (b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the

tenancies person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the
area of the council; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the

Securities total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil
partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that class.

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment
scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any
description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Page 5




>>>» ) Stockton-on-Tees
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Table 2 — Other Registerable Interest
You must register as an Other Registrable Interest:
a) any unpaid directorships

b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which
you are nominated or appointed by your authority

c¢) any body
(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(i) directed to charitable purposes or

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political
party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management

Page 6



Agenda ltem 1

Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library
Evacuation Procedure & Housekeeping

If the fire or bomb alarm should sound please exit by the nearest emergency exit.
The Fire alarm is a continuous ring and the Bomb alarm is the same as the fire
alarm however it is an intermittent ring.

If the Fire Alarm rings exit through the nearest available emergency exit and form
up in Municipal Buildings Car Park.

The assembly point for everyone if the Bomb alarm is sounded is the car park at
the rear of Splash on Church Road.

The emergency exits are located via the doors between the 2 projector screens.
The key coded emergency exit door will automatically disengage when the alarm
sounds.

The Toilets are located on the Ground floor corridor of Municipal Buildings next to
the emergency exit. Both the ladies and gents toilets are located on the right
hand side.

Microphones

During the meeting, members of the Committee, and officers in attendance, will

have access to a microphone. Please use the microphones, when directed to
speak by the Chair, to ensure you are heard by the Committee.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Ag e n d a I te m 4

Crime and Disorder Select Committee

A meeting of the Crime and Disorder Select Committee was held on Thursday 9
February 2023.

Present:  ClIr Pauline Beall (Chair), Clir Paul Weston (Vice-Chair), Cllr Kevin Faulks, Clir Lynn Hall (sub for
Clir Stephen Richardson), ClIr Steve Matthews JP, ClIr Mrs Sylvia Walmsley, ClIr Alan Watson

Officers:  Reuben Kench, Dale Rowbotham (CS,E&C); Jimmy Jones (A&H); Gary Woods (CS)

Also in attendance: Clir Mike Smith (SBC Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport)

Apologies: Clir Clare Gamble, Clir Barbara Inman, Clir Stephen Richardson

1 Evacuation Procedure

The evacuation procedure was noted.

2 Declarations of Interest

There were no interests declared.

3 Minutes

Consideration was given to the minutes of the Crime and Disorder Select
Committee meeting which was held on 1 December 2022 for approval and
signature.

AGREED that the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 1 December
2022 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4 Scrutiny Review of Tree Asset Management

Consideration was given to the draft final report and recommendations for the
Scrutiny Review of Tree Asset Management. The following additional
information was noted:

e Paragraph 4.5: As requested during the Committee’s ‘summary of
evidence’ session in January 2023, a reference to the Place Select
Committee’s recent work on Planning (Development Management) and
Adoption of Open Space had been included.

e Paragraph 4.25: Commentary on how Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council
(SBC) manages tree stumps.

e Paragraph 4.47: A brief summary of the recently published case involving
Newecastle City Council.

e Paragraph 4.48: SBC assurance in response to the Newcastle case.

Page 9



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

e Paragraph 4.49: Survey response statistics amended in light of the
duplicate information which had emerged during further analysis of the
feedback received.

e Paragraph 4.57: Some further links to tree planting information, which
included a useful guidance document from Cornwall Wildlife Trust in
relation to planting the right tree in the right place (graphic added as
Appendix 2).

¢ Recommendations: Members were informed that 1e) had been proposed
and added to the draft report following discussions at the end-of-review tri-
partite meeting in late-January 2023.

Regarding the removal of tree stumps, the Committee queried if the Council
provided opportunities for the public to purchase these for private use.
Officers reiterated previously relayed caution around potentially selling-on
contaminated wood, and that any wood made available for the purposes of
fuel would need to be fully dried prior to burning so it did not cause
environmental damage. Weighing-up the costs and benefits of selling tree
cuttings / stumps therefore required careful consideration.

Members requested clarity on the Council’s facilitation of the disposal of
residents’ Christmas trees. Officers confirmed that a local charity offers a
collection service, and that they can also be picked-up as part of the normal
waste collection process.

The Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport thanked the Committee
for its work on this scrutiny topic and asked if Members might consider
strengthening recommendation 5 (Corporate funding be sourced for an ash
tree survey to be undertaken as soon as possible to establish the potential
extent of the looming arrival of ash dieback within the Borough, along with a
plan on how this will be managed (including anticipated resource
requirements)) by calling for a Tees Valley-wide approach. It was agreed that
the wording would be kept as presented, but that the subsequent Action Plan
in relation to the review’s recommendations could look to propose such
activity.

The Committee thanked officers for their input during the course of the review
and for the production of the ensuing report which would now be presented to
Cabinet later in February 2023. The SBC Director of Community Services,
Environment and Culture echoed this appreciation, and felt this once again
demonstrated the added value afforded by the scrutiny process.

AGREED that the Scrutiny Review of Tree Asset Management final report be
approved for submission to Cabinet.

Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed Recommendations

Consideration was given to the assessments of progress on the
implementation of the recommendations from the Committee’s previously

Page 10




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

completed review of Fraud Awareness (Personal). This was the second
progress update following the Committee’s agreement of the Action Plan in
July 2021 and key developments were noted as follows:

e Recommendation 7 (The feasibility of supporting Age UK Teesside to
extend its provision of digital projects (enabling older people to learn about
devices / how to use the internet) in Middlesbrough / Redcar and
Cleveland to Stockton-on-Tees is further explored): Further exploration
into the availability of digital awareness initiatives had uncovered several
offers across the Borough via SBC itself and other community bodies.
Links to these opportunities were included in the submitted progress
update document.

The Committee emphasised the need for the Council and those community
organisations offering digital awareness sessions to ensure these were not
solely promoted on electronic media, as such an approach may be hidden
from a large proportion of those who the sessions would benefit most.
Understanding take-up of these initiatives would also be useful in determining
any alternative promotional activity.

Further to the previous update on progress that was provided in July 2022,
developments in relation to Action Fraud were noted. As referenced within
the recently published House of Commons: Justice Committee report, ‘Fraud
and the Justice System: Government Response to the Committee’s Fourth
Report of Session 2022-23 (January 2023) (accessible via
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/33421/documents/181645/defa
ult/), the Government plans to replace Action Fraud with a new service in
2024.

AGREED that the Fraud Awareness (Personal) progress update be noted, the
assessment for progress be confirmed, and the Action Plan be signed of as
fully achieved (no further updates required).

Chair's Update and Select Committee Work Programme 2022-2023

Chair’'s Update

The Committee Chair reminded all Members to forward any proposals for
2023-2024 scrutiny topics by the required deadline (17 February 2023) —
these would then be included in the process for setting the 2023-2024
scrutiny work programme.

Work Programme 2022-2023

Consideration was given to the current Crime and Disorder Select Committee
Work Programme.

The next meeting (and final one of the current Council four-year term) was
scheduled for 9 March 2023, and would involve several monitoring items.
Assuming Cabinet endorsement of the Committee’s final report later in

Page 11



https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/33421/documents/181645/default/
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/33421/documents/181645/default/

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

February 2023, a draft Action Plan in relation to the recommendations from
the Tree Asset Management review would be presented for approval.
Progress updates for previously completed reviews on Police
Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish), Public Spaces
Protection Orders (PSPOs), and Bonfires on Public Land would also be
considered. Finally, the overview and scrutiny end-of-term report for 2019-
2023 would also be presented.

AGREED that the Crime and Disorder Select Committee Work Programme
2022-2023 be noted.

Page 12




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Ag e n d a I te m 5

Page 13

Agenda ltem
Crime and Disorder Select Committee

9 March 2023

ACTION PLAN FOR AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS - REVIEW OF TREE

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Summary

Members are asked to consider the Action Plan setting out how the agreed

recommendations from the review of Tree Asset Management will be implemented

and target dates for completion.

Detail

1.  The Committee’s final report of the review of Tree Asset Management (see link
below) was considered by Cabinet in February 2023. Cabinet accepted the

recommendations contained within.

http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44329.pdf

2.  These are now subject to the procedure for monitoring the implementation of
agreed recommendations. An Action Plan has been drawn up and is attached
at Appendix 1. This sets out how the relevant departments will be taking
forward the agreed recommendations and includes target dates for completion.

3. Members should consider and agree the Action Plan. The Committee will
receive a detailed progress update on the implementation of recommendations
approximately 12 months (or sooner if specifically requested) after the Action
Plan has been agreed.

Name of Contact Officer: Gary Woods

Post Title: Senior Scrutiny Officer

Telephone No: 01642 526187

Email Address: gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk



http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44329.pdf
mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

;‘3" APPENDIX 1
< ACTION PLAN: Review of Tree Asset Management
o
No. | Recommendation Proposed Actions / Progress Success Measures Responsibility Date
1 | Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council Formulation of tree management Formal approval and sign off | Service Manager — October
(SBC) refreshes its tree and (arboricultural) policy to reflect the for revised policy. Community Services 2023

woodland management policy and
procedures, and as part of this:

a)

b)

d)

Reaffirms its mandatory
(minimum) service requirements
and where work is prioritised (e.qg.
high-use public areas).

Reflects within it the realistic cycle
of essential maintenance of the
Borough'’s tree stock (and that this
be updated as and when
required).

Emphasises a key message
throughout this review regarding
the planting of the correct species
of tree in the right places (helping
to minimise future maintenance
requirements and revenue costs).

Ensures the updated policy and
procedures are published on
relevant Council platforms, with
an appropriate communications
plan to ensure the local population
can read its content and
understand what future service it
can expect.

points raised in item 1 as follows:

Publication of the key message that
essential maintenance works to
maintain public safety of trees and
woodland is our high priority, with other
service requests itemised with an
appropriate priority rating and timescale.

Maintenance timescales reflective of the
current service availability will be
delivered within the policy

The revised policy will highlight that the
planting of the correct species of tree
relevant to the appropriate area is vital
in ensuring future maintenance
requirements are aligned with resource.

Revision to ensure a ‘readable’ policy
and work with the corporate
communication team to ensure
publication of key messages along with
links to the policy within relevant areas
of the corporate website.

Communications plan to
disseminate information
from revised policy.

Realistic timescales
regarding SBC tree stock
maintenance are clearly
visible within the revised

policy,

Key links to the
Environmental
Sustainability and Carbon
Reduction Strategy 2022-
2032 and detail on how we
will identify the right tree
based on area.

Communications plan to
disseminate information
from revised policy.

& Transport

Service Manager —
Community Services
& Transport and
Communications

Service Manager —
Community Services
& Transport

Service Manager —
Community Services
& Transport

Service Manager —
Community Services
& Transport and
Communications




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

;E’ APPENDIX 1

< ACTION PLAN: Review of Tree Asset Management

&

No. | Recommendation Proposed Actions / Progress Success Measures Responsibility Date
e) Ultilises both print (e.g. Stockton Ensure a full communications plan is in | Communications plan to Service Manager —

News) and electronic mediums to | place to start once formal approval of disseminate information Community Services
raise awareness of the current the revised policy has been achieved from revised policy. & Transport and
issues around tree management Communications
within the Borough, including
responsibilities in relation to trees
on private land.

2 | Tree Preservation Order (TPO) Development of an easy read Easy read document Service Manager — August
planning procedures be reiterated to | document, incorporating some key specific to TPO’s and Community Services 2023
all SBC Ward Councillors and relayed | Q&A’s, relating to Tree Preservation updated information on & Transport and
to residents periodically via the Orders and potential enforcement action | corporate website to provide | Planning
Council’'s multiple communication which can be shared through members | more detailed information
mechanisms (emphasising the bulletins. A more detailed webpage to
enforcement action that can be taken | supplement the easy read document to
if processes are not followed). be proposed alongside.

3 | Regular engagement continues Continue to meet and review projects Successful delivery of Service Manager — Ongoing
between the SBC Tree and and funding opportunities. Key links environmental projects and | Community Services
Woodland Management Service and | already in place between Tree and tree planting, whilst ensuring | & Transport
other relevant Council departments Woodland Management Service and the | maintenance is not
(in particular the SBC Environment, Environment Leisure and Green impacted.

Leisure and Green Infrastructure infrastructure team, planning team will
Team) regarding environmental look to be strengthened for shared
projects and tree planting project deliveries.

maintenance.

4 | A detailed business case be produced | A detailed business case paper to be Report to CMT Service Manager — May 2023
for consideration by SBC prepared for discussion at CMT. Community Services
management regarding a potential & Transport
reinforcement team within Grounds
Maintenance to undertake smaller
scale routine maintenance, thereby
allowing the existing Tree and




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

;? APPENDIX 1
< ACTION PLAN: Review of Tree Asset Management
H
No. | Recommendation Proposed Actions / Progress Success Measures Responsibility Date
Woodland Management Service
specialist staff to focus on more
technical operations.
5 | Corporate funding be sourced for an Source external quotes from industry A number of quotes for a Service Manager — June 2023
ash tree survey to be undertaken as specialists to undertake an ash dieback | complete SBC ash dieback | Community Services
soon as possible to establish the survey on SBC’s ash tree stock. survey. & Transport
potential extent of the looming arrival | Engagement with Tees Valley
of ash dieback within the Borough, colleagues around the potential of a Evidence of
along with a plan on how this will be combined approach or combined discussions/meetings with
managed (including anticipated funding opportunities will also be tees valley colleagues
resource requirements). investigated. around the potential for joint
working.
Once all information has been received | Reportto CMT
a report for CMT consideration will be
prepared and presented.
6 | Consideration be given to Proposed service review within Successful implementation | Service Manager — TBC
strengthening administrative support | community services and transport will of proposed service review | Community Services
to the SBC Tree and Woodland be used to identify and propose to provide administrative & Transport
Management Service to enhance additional areas of administrative support to service
communications between the team support for the arbocultural service.
and Ward Councillors / residents
regarding tree management enquiries
/ complaints (particularly around the
responses to issues raised and plans
/ timescales to address them).




This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Ag e n d a Ite m 6

Agenda ltem
Crime and Disorder Select Committee

9 March 2023

PROGRESS UPDATE ON PREVIOUSLY AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS
— POLICE COMMUNICATIONS IN STOCKTON-ON-TEES (TASK & FINISH)

Summary

Members are asked to consider the evidence and assessments of progress
contained within the attached Progress Update on the implementation of previously
agreed recommendations in relation to the review of Police Communications in
Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish) (for the Committee’s final report, please see
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att41976.pdf).

Detail

1. Following the Cabinet consideration of scrutiny reports, accepted
recommendations are then subject to a monitoring process to track their
implementation.

2. Two main types of report are used. Initially this is by means of Action Plans
detailing how services will be taking forward agreed recommendations. This
is then followed by a Progress Update report approximately 12 months after
the relevant Select Committee has agreed the Action Plan (unless requested
earlier). Evidence is submitted by the relevant department together with an
assessment of progress against all recommendations. Should members of
the Select Committee agree, those recommendations which have reached an
assessment of ‘1’ are then signed off as having been completed.

3. If any recommendations remain incomplete, or if the Select Committee does
not agree with the view on progress, the Select Committee may ask for a
further update.

4, The assessment of progress for each recommendation should be categorised
as follows:
1 | Achieved (Fully) The evidence provided shows that the

recommendation has been fully
implemented within the timescale specified.

2 | On-Track (but not yet due | The evidence provided shows that

for completion) implementation of the recommendation is
on track but the timescale specified has not
expired.

Page 19


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att41976.pdf

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Page 20

3 | Slipped The evidence shows that progress on
implementation has slipped.

An anticipated date by which the
recommendation is expected to become
achieved should be advised and the
reasons for the delay.

4 | Not Achieved The evidence provided shows that the
recommendation has not been fully
achieved.

An explanation for non achievement of the
recommendation would be provided.

5. To further strengthen the monitoring process, from August 2020, the Progress
Update report will also include references on the evidence of impact for each
recommendation.

6. For progress update reports following the completion of a review, the relevant

Link Officer(s) will be in attendance.

7. Appendix 1 (Review of Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task &
Finish)) sets out the outstanding recommendations for this Committee.
Members are asked to review the update and indicate whether they agree
with the assessment of progress.

Name of Contact Officer: Gary Woods

Post Title: Senior Scrutiny Officer

Telephone No: 01642 526187

Email Address: gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk



mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

SCRUTINY MONITORING - PROGRESS UPDATE

Review: Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

Link Officer/s: Marc Stephenson

Action Plan Agreed: March 2022

Updates on the progress of actions in relation to agreed recommendations from previous scrutiny reviews are
required approximately 12 months after the relevant Select Committee has agreed the Action Plan. Progress
updates must be detailed, evidencing what has taken place regarding each recommendation — a grade
assessing progress should then be given (see end of document for grading explanation). Any evidence on the
impact of the actions undertaken should also be recorded for each recommendation.

Recommendation 2: As part of the future communications protocol / agreement between
Cleveland Police and Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) Ward
Councillors:

a) Cleveland Police promotes the need for regular and Ward-specific
engagement with SBC Ward Councillors amongst its internal
workforce (including the provision of information to Elected Members
which is relevant to their particular Ward);

b) Cleveland Police and SBC use their various public-facing
communication platforms to raise the profile of Force-Councillor
partnership-working (highlighting examples of positive engagement
leading to direct action and good outcomes);

c) Expectations around the physical visibility of police officers (i.e. Ward
Surgeries, partnership meetings, resident meetings) be re-established
between Cleveland Police and all SBC Ward Councillors;

d) PCSO contacts for each Ward be reinforced to all SBC Ward
Councillors, along with relevant escalation points if a PCSO is
unavailable for any reason;

e) Consideration be given to using available platforms to raise the
profile of PCSOs and their crucial part in the policing function
(providing clarity on what they can and cannot do, including their use
of social media as a communication tool);

f) Cleveland Police provides a response to concerns raised within the
SBC Ward Councillor survey (undertaken as part of this review), with
specific reference to what it is doing to promote better engagement in
those Wards where Councillors have expressed dissatisfaction with
existing communications arrangements.

Responsibility: Cleveland Police

Page 21



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

Date: May 2022 (Development of protocol)
September 2022 (Assessment of protocol)

Agreed Action: A comprehensive written and agreed communication protocol is developed
between Cleveland Police and Ward Councillors that looks to demonstrably
achieve recommendations a) — f) in a way that is beneficial to both
organisations and clearly sets the expectations placed upon both Cleveland
Police and Stockton Borough Council.

Agreed Success Measure: | Development of a written communication protocol that is introduced and
followed by both organisations accordingly.

The success of the protocol will be reviewed as part of the Ward Councillor
survey detailed in recommendation (4).

Evidence of Progress Engagement for Neighbourhood Police Teams is defined in our community
(November 2022): engagement ward pledge (note: those aspects of the ward pledge more
relevant to the agreed action are underlined):

o Key message statements from the NPT Chief Inspector to your elected
representatives on a bi-monthly basis

o Bespoke Ward newsletters on a bi-monthly basis

e Regular contact with relevant partners to address neighbourhood priorities.

e At least one community meeting per month in each Ward*

e Scanning and analysis of local issues to identify up to three Ward priorities
on a bi-monthly basis

¢ An update to the community of progress against the identify priorities

e A two-way mechanism to obtain views, advice and feedback from the
Community

¢ A designated PCSO assigned to every school

e Engagement opportunities with ongoing youth outreach in our Wards

¢ NPT to engage with community and faith groups

¢ Advance notice of Community engagement opportunities via the Ward
newsletter and social media platforms

o Effective use of social media to engage communities and provide effective
feedback.

¢ Visible patrols in hotspots for anti-social behaviour & crime

o Ward profiles to help understand the demographics and engagement
needs of each area in the force

In addition to the Ward Pledge all Stockton district PCSOs have been asked to
make monthly contact with their ward councillors. A follow-up email was sent to
ward councillors following this direction and there were no issues raised, so it is
understood that this process is largely working.

a) As part of Cleveland Police’s community engagement ward pledge regular
updates are provided to ward councillors by the PCSO for that area and via
bi-monthly C/Insp updates.

b) All ward officers have been provided with login details for social media and
requested to improve output. Corporate communications have improved

Page 22



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

due to the recent return to work of a dedicated member of staff for the
district

Our corporate coms department are developing an app to improve social
media engagement — this should be available by the end of the year.

c) PCSOs are the visible side of neighbourhood policing at present due to the
competing demands placed on Police officers. There is an expectation for
the PCSOs to incorporate engagement and targeted activity work in their
daily patrols.

The value of involving police officers in engagement and improving their
visibility is desirable but often not always achievable.

d) Details of PCSOs have been cascaded to councillors periodically over the
past year. For example, a mail was sent to Outer Stockton wards on
09/03/22 advising of all PCSO and Sergeant contact details. A follow up
mail was sent district wide to advise of ward officers.

Due to staff movement a fresh list will be circulated shortly.

e) All PCSOs have been encouraged to explore different methods for
engagement, including public meetings, social media.

To improve this a training day has been delivered to raise the awareness of
the value of effective engagement. During this training different method
were discussed and best practice examples given.

f) Allward PCSOs have been asked to make monthly contact with each
councillor. There have been no failures reported. If any councillor is not
getting the contact they desire they are to contact T/C Insp Jon Willoughby
to resolve the problem.

Assessment of Progress
(November 2022):

(include explanation if required)

3 (Slipped)

Although some progress has been made, this area is still not to the desired
standard and further improvement is expected. Factors contributing to this
include staff turnover / numbers and competing demands. This has resulted in
most officers having ownership of multiple Wards, which has diluted their focus
and resulted in periodic disruptions to coverage.

Evidence of Impact
(November 2022):

Not applicable.

Evidence of Progress
(March 2023):

a) Cleveland Police promotes the need for regular and Ward-specific
engagement with SBC Ward Councillors amongst its internal
workforce (including the provision of information to Elected Members
which is relevant to their particular Ward);

Page 23




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

All ward councillors are getting regular updates via email from their local
PCSO and a bi-monthly email is sent from C/Insp with crime and ASB
figures and some examples of good work done that month.

b) Cleveland Police and SBC use their various public-facing
communication platforms to raise the profile of Force-Councillor
partnership-working (highlighting examples of positive engagement
leading to direct action and good outcomes);

Social media use has improved across teams and some good examples of
work between officers and SBC particularly on premises closure has been
highlighted.

c) Expectations around the physical visibility of police officers (i.e. Ward
Surgeries, partnership meetings, resident meetings) be re-established
between Cleveland Police and all SBC Ward Councillors;

There are not sufficient officer numbers to have visibility that was
previously enjoyed when the neighbourhood team had over twice as many
police constables as it does now. PCSOs are primarily responsible for
visibility. Stockton has the highest face-to-face engagement levels of all
force teams, being 15.2% higher than the second highest.

d) PCSO contacts for each Ward be reinforced to all SBC Ward
Councillors, along with relevant escalation points if a PCSO is
unavailable for any reason;

Regular contact is made by PCSOs and no issues have been flagged by
Councillors in the intervening period since the last update to the
Committee. This process appears to be working better.

e) Consideration be given to using available platforms to raise the
profile of PCSOs and their crucial part in the policing function
(providing clarity on what they can and cannot do, including their use
of social media as a communication tool);

Social media use has increased. This will continue with the development of
a combined app from our Corporate Communications Team.

f) Cleveland Police provides a response to concerns raised within the
SBC Ward Councillor survey (undertaken as part of this review), with
specific reference to what it is doing to promote better engagement in
those Wards where Councillors have expressed dissatisfaction with
existing communications arrangements.

There have been no further engagement issues raised formally with the
force since the last update was provided to the Committee. Regular
meetings are taking place with SBC including the Leader and Cabinet
Member where issues are raised and discussed from Members. Updates
are provided and this process again appears to be working well.

Page 24



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)

Assessment of Progress 1 (Fully Achieved)
(March 2023):
(include explanation if required)
Evidence of Impact Engagement and communication with a range of stakeholders has been
(March 2023): undertaken as a result of the work done in this Borough by Cleveland Police.
So far this year, Stockton Neighbourhood Policing Team have recorded the
highest level of face-to-face engagement with the public across the entire force
area by a significant margin. Furthermore, other engagement activity has also
continued.
Face to face engagement events
Total number of engagement events by LPA
350
100
250
300
150
LEK)
, H=l
Hartlepoal NFT Redcar NPT Middlesbrough NFT SEoC kiom NPT
mRoy-2 mDec-2] mlan-23
Last 12
Movember December January
Hartlepool 50 18 a7 B28
Redcar 182 96 125 1595
Redcar & East Oeveland a8z 40 65 825
Greater Eston 100 56 60 770
Middlesbrough 101 106 104 1764
- North (=] 55 61 1048
South a1 51 43 716
Stockton 84 78 305 2033
Outer Stockton 46 29 248 1292
Stockton Central 38 49 57 741
Force 417 298 571 6020

Assessment of 1 2 3 4
Progress Gradings: Fully Achieved On-Track Slipped Not Achieved

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Ag e n d a Ite m 7

Agenda ltem
Crime and Disorder Select Committee

9 March 2023

PROGRESS UPDATE ON PREVIOUSLY AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS
— PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS (PSPOs)

Summary

Members are asked to consider the evidence and assessments of progress
contained within the attached Progress Update on the implementation of previously
agreed recommendations in relation to the review of Public Spaces Protection Orders
(PSPOs) (see http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42178.pdf
for the final report).

Detail

1. Following the Cabinet consideration of scrutiny reports, accepted
recommendations are then subject to a monitoring process to track their
implementation.

2. Two main types of report are used. Initially this is by means of Action Plans
detailing how services will be taking forward agreed recommendations. This
is then followed by a Progress Update report approximately 12 months after
the relevant Select Committee has agreed the Action Plan (unless requested
earlier). Evidence is submitted by the relevant department together with an
assessment of progress against all recommendations. Should members of
the Select Committee agree, those recommendations which have reached an
assessment of ‘1’ are then signed off as having been completed.

3. If any recommendations remain incomplete, or if the Select Committee does
not agree with the view on progress, the Select Committee may ask for a
further update.

4, The assessment of progress for each recommendation should be categorised
as follows:
1 | Achieved (Fully) The evidence provided shows that the

recommendation has been fully
implemented within the timescale specified.

2 | On-Track (but not yet due | The evidence provided shows that

for completion) implementation of the recommendation is
on track but the timescale specified has not
expired.

Page 27


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42178.pdf

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Page 28

3 | Slipped

The evidence shows that progress on
implementation has slipped.

An anticipated date by which the
recommendation is expected to become
achieved should be advised and the
reasons for the delay.

4 | Not Achieved

The evidence provided shows that the
recommendation has not been fully
achieved.

An explanation for non achievement of the
recommendation would be provided.

5. To further strengthen the monitoring process, from August 2020, the Progress
Update report will also include references on the evidence of impact for each
recommendation.

6. For progress update reports following the completion of a review, the relevant

Link Officer(s) will be in attendance.

7. Appendix 1 (Review of Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs)) sets out
the outstanding recommendations for this Committee. Members are asked to
review the update and indicate whether they agree with the assessment of

progress.

Name of Contact Officer: Gary Woods
Post Title: Senior Scrutiny Officer
Telephone No: 01642 526187

Email Address: gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk



mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs)

SCRUTINY MONITORING - PROGRESS UPDATE

Review: Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOSs)

Link Officer/s: Marc Stephenson

Action Plan Agreed: March 2022

Updates on the progress of actions in relation to agreed recommendations from previous scrutiny reviews are
required approximately 12 months after the relevant Select Committee has agreed the Action Plan. Progress
updates must be detailed, evidencing what has taken place regarding each recommendation — a grade
assessing progress should then be given (see end of document for grading explanation). Any evidence on the
impact of the actions undertaken should also be recorded for each recommendation.

Recommendation 2: Consideration be given to an increased dedicated and visible multi-
agency presence (including the use of recently enhanced SBC Civic
Enforcement resources) within the Borough’s town centres to support
local businesses and reassure residents / visitors in identifying and
responding to ASB.

Responsibility: Assistant Director — Community Safety and Regulated Services
Date: 1%t October 2022
Agreed Action: A review of the deployment of operational teams into the town centre

environments across Stockton on Tees is undertaken to ensure they are
having maximum impact and meeting the needs of residents and businesses.

A review of joint working amongst responsible partners be undertaken
including further consideration to be given to a co-located model in Stockton
Town Centre.

Agreed Success Measure: | An increase in the level of visible resources within town centre environments.

Clear evidence of a strategy being in place to ensure effective multi-agency
working to tackle ASB in town centres.

Evidence of further support being offered to local businesses to reassure and
improve reporting of ASB.

Evidence of Progress A review of the available operational resource deployed to our town centre
(November 2022): environments has been undertaken. As a result, a dedicated team of 12 Civic
Enforcement Officers which are led by a supervising officer have been ring
fenced to town centres across Stockton on Tees. This has been made possible
through the provision of an additional 2 year’s worth of funding to support town
centres and economic growth post pandemic by ensuring they are safe and
welcoming.

Page 29



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs)

The 12 dedicated Enforcement Officers are further supplemented, when
needed, by resources from the core-service who are supported by dedicated
CCTV operators focusing on town centre related issues and intelligence in
support of frontline services such as Enforcement and Police.

Further work around multi-agency working to tackle ASB in the town centres
has also continued to develop. Additional resources at key times (i.e. market
days) is also in place from Cleveland Police with joint patrols and improved
information sharing in place, via the Joint Agency Group. This work is
underpinned by a new Community Safety Strategy that all partners have
committed to.

Engagement with local businesses has continued undertaken by a range of
partners including Stockton BC and Cleveland Police. Further work is ongoing
to secure additional support and resources to support key priorities, such as
safety in the night-time economy and crime prevention support and advice on a
regular basis.

Assessment of Progress
(November 2022):

(include explanation if required)

2 (On-Track)

Evidence of Impact
(November 2022):

Assessment of impact will be undertaken through a consultation of relevant
stakeholders and ongoing assessment of the total number of reports and
interventions taken within the town centre environments.

Evidence of Progress
(March 2023):

The additional 12 Civic Enforcement Officers have now been fully embedded
within the town centre areas to supplement the wider team already providing a
service to businesses and the visiting public. The team are working alongside

Page 30




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs)

multi-agency partners, including Cleveland Police, with a problem solving
approach having been adopted and working well. The multi-agency use of
Rediscover Stockton is now in place as a touch down area and joint briefings
are taking place several times per week to ensure the highest levels of
information sharing, review and co-ordination of pro-active activity in line with
what the public are telling us are their priorities.

Leading up to the implementation of a PSPO in Stockton Town Centre and
Norton Village in April, additional joint working with partners such as CGL and
our own Housing Services is also fully in place.

Assessment of Progress
(March 2023):

(include explanation if required)

1 (Fully Achieved)

Evidence of Impact
(March 2023):

A consultation exercise was undertaken as part of the planning for a PSPO in
Stockton Town Centre and Norton Village. Over 1,500 people responded to the
consultation providing a bench mark for assessing the future impact of our
additional resources are changes to approach within the two locations.

Further consultation work has also been undertaken as part of this review
including the annual Community Safety Audit.

An assessment of overall impact will be undertaken at regular intervals over
the next several months using these indicators.

Assessment of

Progress Gradings:

Page 31

1 2 3 4
Fully Achieved On-Track Slipped Not Achieved




This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Ag e n d a Ite m 8

Agenda ltem
Crime and Disorder Select Committee

9 March 2023

PROGRESS UPDATE ON PREVIOUSLY AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS
— BONFIRES ON PUBLIC LAND

Summary

Members are asked to consider the evidence and assessments of progress
contained within the attached Progress Update on the implementation of previously
agreed recommendations in relation to the review of Bonfires on Public Land (see
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att43232.pdf for the final
report).

Detail

1. Following the Cabinet consideration of scrutiny reports, accepted
recommendations are then subject to a monitoring process to track their
implementation.

2. Two main types of report are used. Initially this is by means of Action Plans
detailing how services will be taking forward agreed recommendations. This
is then followed by a Progress Update report approximately 12 months after
the relevant Select Committee has agreed the Action Plan (unless requested
earlier). Evidence is submitted by the relevant department together with an
assessment of progress against all recommendations. Should members of
the Select Committee agree, those recommendations which have reached an
assessment of ‘1’ are then signed off as having been completed.

3. If any recommendations remain incomplete, or if the Select Committee does
not agree with the view on progress, the Select Committee may ask for a
further update.

4, The assessment of progress for each recommendation should be categorised
as follows:
1 | Achieved (Fully) The evidence provided shows that the

recommendation has been fully
implemented within the timescale specified.

2 | On-Track (but not yet due | The evidence provided shows that

for completion) implementation of the recommendation is
on track but the timescale specified has not
expired.

Page 33


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att43232.pdf

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Page 34

3 | Slipped

The evidence shows that progress on
implementation has slipped.

An anticipated date by which the
recommendation is expected to become
achieved should be advised and the
reasons for the delay.

4 | Not Achieved

The evidence provided shows that the
recommendation has not been fully
achieved.

An explanation for non achievement of the
recommendation would be provided.

5. To further strengthen the monitoring process, from August 2020, the Progress
Update report will also include references on the evidence of impact for each
recommendation.

6. For progress update reports following the completion of a review, the relevant

Link Officer(s) will be in attendance.

7. Appendix 1 (Review of Bonfires on Public Land) sets out
recommendations for this Committee.

the
Members are asked to review the

update and indicate whether they agree with the assessments of progress.

Name of Contact Officer: Gary Woods
Post Title: Senior Scrutiny Officer
Telephone No: 01642 526187

Email Address: gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk



mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

SCRUTINY MONITORING - PROGRESS UPDATE

Review: Bonfires on Public Land

Link Officer/s: Marc Stephenson (now Sharon Cooney)

Action Plan Agreed: March 2023

Updates on the progress of actions in relation to agreed recommendations from previous scrutiny reviews are
required approximately 12 months after the relevant Select Committee has agreed the Action Plan. Progress
updates must be detailed, evidencing what has taken place regarding each recommendation — a grade
assessing progress should then be given (see end of document for grading explanation). Any evidence on the
impact of the actions undertaken should also be recorded for each recommendation.

Recommendation 1: To supplement Cleveland Fire Brigade’s (CFB) annual promotion of fire safety
ahead of the bonfire season, Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC)
reviews its own public engagement approach to reinforce this messaging
across all available communication mechanisms, emphasising dangers of
bonfires and impact on local residents.

Responsibility: SBC Head of Community Safety
Date: March 2023
Agreed Action: Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council will review its own public engagement

program to ensure it supports that of Cleveland Fire Brigade around key safety
messaging over the bonfire period.

Agreed Success Measure: | Clear evidence that the SBC and CFB have a shared approach to community
engagement on key safety messages during the bonfire period.

Examples of shared messaging and engagement a range of platforms are

evident.
Evidence of Progress This is evidenced in the collaborative approach taken alongside Cleveland Fire
(March 2023): Brigade. Environmental Crime Officers worked alongside CFB using data to

identify sixteen locations most vulnerable to deliberate fire setting. These
residents received a letter promoting responsible disposal of waste materials.
A variety of methods were used to communicate key messages across the
Borough, including Social Media (see below) and letter drops to local residents.

o

Stockton-on-Tees

{> Taking waste to Haverton Hill Recycling Centre using a van, trailer or pic r a permit with a text!

-

Resident:

o transport waste to the centre th

y must have a permit before v

The way to req

st a permit is now quicker and easier thanks to our WasteBOT text messaging service.

You just need a mobile phone, photo ID and proof o s - such as a driver’s licence — to use the service

Text 'WASTE' to 07723 466991 and you will rec ions to choose from. The V eBOT will automatically text back instructions based on the option selected

You can then apply for a new permit, update your personal details or update your vehicle registration

number on an existing permit from your mobile phone

Once complete you can make a maximum of 12 non-chargeable visits a year. You will also need to book a time siot at

Certain materials such as rubble, tiles, etc, are subject to a £20 charge when taken to site in van, trailer or pickup. This payment can be made via our customer service line

You can also text the ber to access usef

For more information on WasteBOT and vehicle permits visit

Page 35



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

Social Media

A joint social media campaign was run entitled ‘4 Ways You Can help Us
The Press Release had 150 views

The Facebook post reached 3000 users

The Tweet reached 2000 users through direct users and retweets

The LinkedIn post reached 415 users

The Instagram story had 700 views

We also shared Cleveland Fire Brigade's post;

The Facebook share reached 8500 people

The Retweet reached 900 users

Letter to residents

Dear Resident,
Waste storage and Disposal

As we approach bonfire season, the Civic Enforcement Service want to take
this opportunity to remind residents of the appropriate way to store and dispose
waste lawfully.

Fly tipping costs local authorities millions of pounds each year to remove but it
also has a detrimental impact on both our community and environment. You
can help us tackle this problem.

Bonfire season creates a potential risk of people setting deliberate fires
especially on large communal green areas, which creates an added strain on
our Emergency Services. Along with the additional pressures on services, fly
tipping waste is a criminal offence and can leave you subject to a fine of an
unlimited amount and imprisonment of up to 5 years.

Our Enforcement officers will be proactively patrolling locations and any waste
that is fly tipped will be removed and investigations will be conducted which
may lead to prosecutions.

As always we want our community to enjoy the season, stay safe and be
aware of the strain this illegal activity has on our environment, neighbourhoods

Page 36




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

and our emergency services. We encourage residents to attend planned, safe
and scheduled events.

What if | have waste to remove?

If you have waste that needs removing, we encourage residents to recycle
where possible and utilise the facilities the council have to offer

Care for your area offer a Bulky Waste collection service which can be
arranged online at https://www.stockton.gov.uk or via telephone 01642
391959.

Your local household Waste Recycling centre SUEZ recycling and recovery
UK,

is located on Haverton Hill Road, TS231PY. You can book a slot at your
convenience_using the following site - https://digital.stockton.gov.uk/hwrc-

bookings

Registered waste carriers can take your waste and dispose of it appropriately.
You can find a registered waste carrier on the following government website.
https://environment.data.gov.uk/public-register/view/search-waste-carriers-
brokers - but be sure to obtain a waste transfer note.

What checks do | need to make?

The relevant checks of waste carrier licences can be done online on the
Environment Agency’s website or waste carriers register at
https://environment.data.gov.uk/public-register/view/search-waste-carriers-
brokers. If you do not have the waste licence registration number, searching for
the business name or their commercial trading name is a useful alternative.

A waste carrier must have the correct waste licence to transport or remove any
waste, and they must complete a waste transfer note. Be sure to check that the
licence is in date and valid for the type of waste that you need removing.

How can | discharge my liability?

If the relevant checks are not done, and subsequently your waste is fly tipped
you are liable to be investigated contrary to Section 34 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 for the duty of care of your waste. You need to ensure that
you obtain a signed waste transfer note from the person who is removing your
waste and request to see their waste carrier’s licence. It is recommended you
make a note of their waste carrier's number. For more information regarding
what should be on waste transfer notes and your requirements visit -
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1991/2839/made

How do | report Fly Tipping, waste accumulation or someone who | believe to
not be a waste carrier?

We are working closely with Cleveland Fire Brigade to prevent any fly tipping
occurring and subsequently being set alight for the purpose of this season and
to prosecute those responsible. This residential area has been highlighted from

Page 37



https://www.stockton.gov.uk/
https://digital.stockton.gov.uk/hwrc-bookings
https://digital.stockton.gov.uk/hwrc-bookings
https://environment.data.gov.uk/public-register/view/search-waste-carriers-brokers
https://environment.data.gov.uk/public-register/view/search-waste-carriers-brokers
https://environment.data.gov.uk/public-register/view/search-waste-carriers-brokers
https://environment.data.gov.uk/public-register/view/search-waste-carriers-brokers

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

the council’s statistics and Cleveland Fire Brigade as a location where these
incidents have previously taken place. Therefore, we urge anyone who
witnesses fly tipping occurring or a waste accumulation in gardens to contact
the Civic Enforcement Service on 01642 528439 or via email at
Civic.Enforcement@stockton.gov.uk

Together we can work to prevent fly tipping and illegal bonfires which impact
on our community. Let’s enjoy this season responsibly and protect our
neighbourhoods, emergency services and environment.

Yours Sincerely,

Civic Enforcement - Environmental Crime Co-ordinators.

Assessment of Progress
(March 2023):

(include explanation if required)

1 (Fully Achieved)

Evidence of Impact
(March 2023):

There were 13 deliberate F1 incidents and 48 F3 incidents during the reporting
period of 10 October to 06 November 2022, of which 43 had deliberate causes,
3 smoking materials, 1 radiated heat and 1 child accidental.

In the four-weeks prior 12 September to 09 October 2022 there were 6
deliberate F1 incidents and 51 F3 incidents (of which 48 had deliberate cause,
1 radiated heat, 1 unknown and 1 smoking materials).

During the same period 2021/22 (11 October to 07 November 2021) there
were 11 deliberate F1 and 56 F3 incidents (of which 53 deliberate cause, 2
radiated heat and 1 smoking materials).

This is a demonstrable decrease of deliberate incidents for this year’s Bonfire
period since 2021/22 when the country still had some pandemic measures in
place. There are also less deliberate fires than the reporting period
immediately prior.

Recommendation 2:

In terms of communicating to the wider public, SBC considers adopting
the Shrewsbury Town Council approach in emphasising a zero tolerance
towards unauthorised bonfires (including contact routes for permission
to light a bonfire on public land and the potential consequences for
failing to seek permission).

Responsibility:

SBC Head of Community Safety

Date:

February 2023

Agreed Action:

Stockton Borough Council will undertake further research into this approach,
identifying and applying where reasonable best practice.

Consideration given to the legal viability of allowing approved bonfires to take
place on public land.

Page 38



mailto:Civic.Enforcement@stockton.gov.uk

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

Agreed Success Measure:

Assurance made to the committee that SBC has contacted other areas
including Shrewsbury Town Council to learn more about their approach.

Evidence that processes have been put in place (or considered) for legitimate
bonfire to take place.

Evidence of Progress
(March 2023):

Lead officer for this initiative has been absent and so the work has been
reallocated. An appointment to discuss the ability to restrict Bonfire locations
with Legal Department has been made and elements of the approach will be
rolled out in advance of this year’s Bonfire period.

This will be adopted as a Joint Action Group agenda item and it is anticipated
SBC will be adopt a similar approach in advance of Bonfire season 2023. Other
research has also been undertaken around best practice and this will also be
applied accordingly.

Assessment of Progress
(March 2023):

(include explanation if required)

1 (Fully Achieved)

Evidence of Impact
(March 2023):

Not applicable.

Recommendation 3:

SBC reinforces existing communication arrangements with both CFB and
Cleveland Police for them to report details of dispensed combustible
materials for collection (both during and outside the bonfire season).

Responsibility:

SBC Head of Community Safety

Date:

November 2022

Agreed Action:

SBC provide a clear and simple method for CFB and Cleveland Police to report
combustible materials for timely collection at all times of the year.

Agreed Success Measure:

Clear evidence of a simple and defined process that is in place to allow
partners to report combustible items for removal.

Supporting evidence of this process being used is captured and reported back
to committee.

Evidence of Progress
(March 2023):

During the bonfire season, CFB and Police had direct access to Control Room
via radio and telephone to report any issues. Police and CFB Control Rooms
also had direct access to Control Room to immediately report combustible
items. Reports from CFB and Police were not captured individually as
Operation Autumnus runs as a multi-agency operation.

This capability is retained throughout the year. An online reporting system was
implemented for use by all agencies and the public and has proven to be a
success as the request can be created at the scene using the online form. This
generates a job which can be directly accessed by enforcement to pick
up/attend and action.

Page 39




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

officer investigating. This has encouraged members of the public to report

was attended by our enforcement team and actioned resulting in a Fixed
Penalty Notice for duty of care and also raised a hot spot area for dumping
waste.

This sharing of information is vital and has proven to have a positive impact,
although at present there is no reporting mechanism for separating reports
from different agencies and sources.

(March 2023):

(include explanation if required)

Assessment of Progress 1 (Fully Achieved)

Evidence of Impact
(March 2023):

dealing (eg. CFYA, Environmental Health, Trading Standards).

Season:
Grand
Row Labels Oct Nov Total
016 Setting Fires 9 3 12
017 Inappropriate use of fireworks 21 9 30
018 Assist Fire Brigade 1 1
Grand Total 30 13 43

As a continuation of this recommendation moving forward, for Autumn 2023
the team will explore opportunities for data capture and collaboration across
internal and external teams.

Recommendation 4:

SBC continues to support CFB and Thirteen Housing Group in
undertaking leaflet-drops to identified bonfire hotspot neighbourhoods
within the Borough regarding fire safety and reporting routes for anti-
social behaviour / associated disorder.

Responsibility:

SBC Head of Community Safety

Date:

November 2022

Agreed Action:

SBC to continue and where reasonable increase its support of CFB and
Thirteen Housing Group in bonfire hotspots within Stockton on Tees.

period.

Page 40

This has proven to be efficient as it gives the options to include pictures of the
waste and pinpoint the location of the waste on a map making it easier for the

waste. CFB recently reported waste issues/fires at a location in Stockton. This

Reports are allocated via the GOSS system to the department most suited to

The table below represents incidents allocated to Community Safety for Bonfire

SBC continues to deal robustly with instances of ASB and disorder during this




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

Agreed Success Measure:

Clear evidence of partnership working taking place to reduce the levels of
deliberate fire setting and improve safety.

Clear evidence of a strategy to tackle seasonal ASB and disorder is in place.

Evidence of Progress
(March 2023):

A new approach to partnership working has been developed which is prepared
by Environmental Crime Officers, with a clear strategy to deal with ASB
hotspots, fire safety and reporting routes for the bonfire, this is demonstrated
through the Operation Bonfire approach, implemented in 2022 and will be
further developed throughout the year. The approach looks to build on the
existing work done historically around this period of high demand but also
incorporates recommendations from the review.

It is acknowledged following the scrutiny review and debrief from last year’s
operation that there could have been more ‘joined up’ work with Housing and
Youth Outreach in the approach to the Bonfire period 2022. Individual
organisational restructures and a retreat from partnership working during the
pandemic contributed to a somewhat disjointed approach in comparison to pre-
pandemic operations. This has been addressed for 2023, via the planning
process and overseen by the Joint Action Group.

CFB and Thirteen are partners on the JAG, which meets monthly. The
partnership work to tackle ASB and deliberate fires continues both inside and
outside of Bonfire season in order to achieve sustainable, long-term changes in
behaviour rather than just during the approach to October and November.

So far this year, two joint walkabouts have taken place, one is planned for
Holmes Estate, Thornaby on 9" March and more will be arranged regularly via
the JAG. Involved agencies include Community Safety, Environmental Health,
Thirteen, CFYA, Police and CFB.

The ‘walkabouts’ have taken place in the following locations:
e Primrose Hill
o Tilery

Rubbish accumulation, graffiti and community needs such as garden tidy ups
etc were identified and shared with relevant partners. Community intelligence
was also gathered and shared with relevant partners and this process will
continue as business as usual moving forward.

Assessment of Progress
(March 2023):

(include explanation if required)

1 (Fully Achieved)

Evidence of Impact
(March 2023):

Information about the dangers, consequences, potential costs and the likely
penalties under section 33 of The Environmental Protection Act 1990 were
outlined in letters sent to 453 properties in the identified hotspot areas on 17
October 2022. The letters also highlighted the strain on our emergency
services and informed householders how get combustible items removed
correctly and minimise the risk of any waste being set alight. Details of how to
report any waste accumulations they may see in the area to the Authority were
included.

Page 41




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

In the period from the letter drop to 6" November, there were 13 waste
accumulation incidents and 56 fly tips reported and investigated by the team.

Recommendation 5:

To further deter the construction and lighting of unauthorised bonfires,
SBC identifies any alternative sites within the Borough where official
bonfires may be able to be facilitated in the future.

Responsibility:

SBC Head of Community Safety

Date:

November 2022

Agreed Action:

SBC will monitor and where reasonable advertise diversionary events including
official bonfires to deter the practice on public land.

Agreed Success Measure:

Evidence of a communication / engagement strategy which accounts for
advertisement of diversionary activity during this period.

Evidence of Progress
(March 2023):

There is continued work to identify and accurately track bonfire hotspots and
this will continue throughout the year and approaching 2023 season.

During Autumn 2022, the Authority conducted a Social Media campaign on the
approach to Mischief Night and Bonfire Night, advertising many diversionary
activities to attract families, children and Young People to alternative sites and
activities, including the Halloween Spooky Walk that coincided with Mischief
Night. Bearing in mind that not all bonfires and ASB in the season take place
on 5" November, work was undertaken with SBC Youth Workers to divert
young people throughout the period.

The Shrewsbury Town Council approach is being explored and our own
strategy being developed based on this for implementation in Autumn 2023.
Environmental Crime Officers have been tasked with engagement activity over
the next few months to identify appropriate sites and discuss with residents
and businesses.

HALLOWEEN
SPOOKY

SUNDAY 30 OCTOBER
PRESTON PARK MUSEUM & GROUNDS

E> Stockton-onTees
DD orsiconc

Assessment of Progress
(March 2023):

(include explanation if required)

2 (On-Track)

Page 42




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

PROGRESS UPDATE: Review of Bonfires on Public Land

Evidence of Impact
(March 2023):

The data for ‘Recommendation 1’ demonstrates the achieved reductions in
deliberate fire-setting for Bonfire Season.

An update on the implementation of an approach similar to The Shrewsbury
Town Council method will be presented to the Committee in due course.
Autumnus 2023 will incorporate a collaborative approach with Youth outreach
and schools.

Assessment of
Progress Gradings:

Page 43

1 2 3 4
Fully Achieved On-Track Slipped Not Achieved




This page is intentionally left blank



[

m

Page 45

JAVa |
myci

@ Stockton-on-Tees

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Overview
and
Scrutiny

End-of-Term Report
2019-2023

naa It
ida

0
Iteitl

(@]
J



http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj4t4X3mtfgAhVGUBoKHfQsA8QQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://newwritingnorth.com/about-us/partners/&psig=AOvVaw2wDGOT5-6DYOgyTIRjvenZ&ust=1551195239728465

Page 46

Executive Scrutiny Committee
Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council
Municipal Buildings

Church Road

Stockton-on-Tees

TS18 1LD



Contents

0 =10 o 4
What is Overview and SCrutiny? ... ... 5
Four Principles of EffeCtive SCIULINY ..o e 6
SBC Overview and Scrutiny CommIttees ..........ooviiiie e 7

Scrutiny Topics: 2019-2023

» Adult Social Care and Health Select Commiittee ..o 8
» Children and Young People Select Committee ... 14
» Crime and Disorder Select COMMITIEE ........c.iiiiiii i 18
» People Select COMMILEEE .......oiiiiii 25
> Place Select CommMIttEe ... 30

Other Scrutiny Work

P QUAIILY ASSUIANCE ...ttt e e e 34
D 110 1 T 34
» Training and Development ... 35
» Profile of the SBC Scrutiny Function ..., 35

Regional Scrutiny

» Joint Health Scrutiny Committees ... 36
» Cleveland Police and Crime Panel .......... ..o 36
» Regional Joint Member / Officer Scrutiny Network ... 38
Overview and SCrutiny Team ... ..o 39
Appendix 1: SBC Scrutiny 2019-2020 .......uuiuieitiiie e 40
Appendix 2: SBC Scrutiny 2020-2021 ... .o 41
Appendix 3: SBC Scrutiny 2021-2022 ........uieiiieiie e 42
Appendix 4: SBC Scrutiny 2022-2023 ........ueiiitiee e 43

Page 47



Foreword

It gives us great pleasure to present this end-of-term report which provides details of the work
undertaken by Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function over the last
four years.

The 2019-2023 Council term began with a host of new Members taking their place on our scrutiny
committees alongside many Councillors who had previously served in such a capacity. This mix of
fresh perspectives combined with experience has again proved useful as we have sought to examine
another vast range of topics and, ultimately, contribute to making services within the Borough as
good as they can be. It was especially good to see the cross-party working and co-operation of all
scrutiny members to work together to bring about positive change.

Of course, it goes without saying that the most significant development since the local elections in
2019 was the emergence of COVID-19, the impact of which has been, and continues to be,
enormous. Organisations were required to quickly switch priorities, business became far from ‘as
usual’, and ways of working had to be adapted to follow ever-changing national guidance. Against
this extremely challenging backdrop, the need to maintain an oversight on local services, as well as
understand, and indeed sometimes question, new practices were crucial in continuing to serve the
people of the Borough in a safe and timely manner. The use of Microsoft Teams and remote
meetings was also crucial in keeping the scrutiny programme on track, and thanks must go to Xentrall
Shared Services and their ICT personnel for the swift roll-out and training programmes which
enabled a seamless transition.

As detailed within this report, you will see that the Council’s Select Committees have again covered
a multitude of topics during the 2019-2023 term, many of them involving very challenging and
complex issues for which there are rarely straightforward answers. We remain grateful to all those
who contributed to the numerous in-depth reviews, whether they be Elected Members or officers of
the Council, or representatives of external partners who operate within the Borough. We are lucky
to have strong relationships with a plethora of organisations across Stockton-on-Tees and beyond,
and are grateful for their understanding of the important role scrutiny has in maintaining and
improving good quality local services.

These last four years have witnessed a very turbulent period in the country’s history, and we close
this latest Council term conscious of some serious issues which require continued focus, not least
challenges involving ongoing inflationary pressures, energy costs, climate concerns, and difficulties
for public services in terms of recruitment and retention. As we thank all Committee Members
(working diligently in addition to their other elected duties) and officers supporting the scrutiny
function, we also wish those re-elected and newly elected Councillors well in their future scrutineer
roles for 2023 and beyond. Being a ‘critical friend’ to the Council and its various partners will continue
to be an important factor in ensuring we offer the local population services which they need and
deserve.

Cllr Mrs Sylvia Walmsley Cllr Maurice Perry
Chair Vice-Chair
Executive Scrutiny Committee Executive Scrutiny Committee

Page 48



What is Overview and Scrutiny?

Scrutiny helps to ensure that local people receive high quality services. Facilitated through Stockton-
on-Tees Borough Council’s scrutiny committee structure, it involves Councillors working with local
people, the community, Council services and other organisations. The Council’s Select Committees
meet on a regular basis and also gather information through site visits and a range of engagement
activities.

The scrutiny work programme for 2019-2023 has again comprised a range of in-depth reviews,
including strategic elements linked to corporate priorities, as well as topical issues of public concern.

Recognising the increasing pressure on the Council’s finances, it is imperative that in-depth scrutiny
reviews promote the Council’s policy priorities and, where possible, seek to identify efficiencies and
reduce demand for services. This remains an embedded part of the Select Committees’ work.

Members have continued to maintain a focus on the quality and safety of local services, particularly
in relation to adult social care, services for children and young people, and NHS provision accessed
by local residents.

This balanced programme of work has met the four principles of effective public scrutiny as set out
by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS), a social purpose consultancy and national centre
of expertise whose purpose is to help organisations achieve their outcomes through improved
governance and scrutiny, both in policy and in practice. These state that good scrutiny work:

Provides constructive ‘critical friend’ challenge

Amplifies the voices and concerns of the public

Drives improvement in public services

Is led by independent people who take responsibility for their role

VVVY

m' he role that overview and scrutiny can play in holding an authority’s decision-makers D
account makes it fundamentally important to the successful functioning of local democracy.

Effective scrutiny helps secure the efficient delivery of public services and drives
improvements within the authority itself. Conversely, poor scrutiny can be indicative of wider
governance, leadership, and service failure.’

taken from the Ministerial foreword of ‘Overview and scrutiny: statutory
guidance for councils and combined authorities’ by the Department of
\ Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) published in 2019

Page 49



Four Principles of Effective Scrutiny

This report describes some of the highlights of our work reflecting the four principles of effective
public scrutiny (full details on each year’s work programme can be found at Appendix 1-4).

Provides constructive ‘critical friend’ challenge

The importance of Select Committees constructively challenging executive policy-makers and
decision-makers is crucial in holding organisations and individuals to account, which can ultimately
play a significant role in service development and improvement. Scrutiny work over the last four
years has enabled Committee Members to consider evidence from both internal Council and external
sources, discussing and questioning numerous difficult, sometimes sensitive, issues across a
diverse range of topics.

Amplifies the voices and concerns of the public ‘

Ensuring that the voice of the public is sought, and indeed heard, is a key function of the scrutiny
process, and reviews over the last four years have significantly benefitted from such consultation.
Getting the perspectives of local residents and organisations has enabled Select Committees to gain
real insight into how people feel about a specific topic (as well as related issues), how it impacts
them in their community, and what ideas can be pursued to improve a situation.

An important feature of scrutiny work is the gathering of a range of views that allows Select
Committees to fully understand a particular problem or concern. This is achieved by engaging with
the public, be they residents, businesses, or external partners of the Council, and can involve a
variety of methods such as surveys, Committee visits to sites across the Borough (and beyond), and
by using social media platforms.

Drives improvement in public services

The driving force behind effective scrutiny work is the desire to ensure that local services are good
or better. All work is conducted on the basis of being a ‘critical friend’ in order to secure continual
improvements in services to residents, whether these are delivered directly by the Council, in
partnership with other local organisations, or solely by external bodies themselves.

Is led by independent people who take responsibility for their role

The Council’s Executive Scrutiny Committee co-ordinates the overall scrutiny work programme at
Stockton-on-Tees. Topics for the in-depth review programme are sought from all Members and
officers. Following a prioritisation process that considers all suggestions, the Committee agrees the
in-depth topic review programme on an annual basis.

This Committee also has oversight of both performance on the Council Plan and the Medium Term

Financial Plan (MTFP), and receives six-monthly updates on both. Executive summaries for all
completed scrutiny review final reports are considered for information and shared learning.

Page 50



SBC Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Overview and scrutiny at Stockton-on-Tees is organised in the following way, with an Executive
Scrutiny Committee that agrees the overall work programme, and five themed Select Committees:

EXECUTIVE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

> 4

Chair Vice-Chair
Clir Mrs Sylvia Walmsley Clir Maurice Perry

ADULT CHILDREN &
SOCIAL CARE YOUNG D(;ELJMREDE‘R PEOPLE
& HEALTH PEOPLE

Chair Chair Chair Chair Chair
Clir Evaline Clir Carol Clir Pauline Clir Marilyn Clir Chris
Cunningham Clark Beall Surtees Barlow

“1 ke - ?",:‘L 01/;4

Vice-Chair Vice-Chair Vice-Chair Vice-Chair Vice-Chair
Clir Clare Cllr Barbara Clir Paul Clir Mrs Jean Clir Mohammed
Gamble Inman Weston O’Donnell Javed

The Executive Scrutiny Committee has 18 Members, and each Select Committee comprises nine
Councillors — all are politically-balanced.

Page 51



Scrutiny Topics: 2019-2023

Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee

Care Homes for Older People 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

The overall aim of the review was to seek to understand the reasons why care homes in Stockton-
on-Tees were not achieving the same level of Care Quality Commission (CQC) ratings as the Tees
and national average, and to identify what activities could take place by the Care Homes, the Local
Authority and wider stakeholders to improve CQC ratings. The SBC Integrated Strategy Team and
the SBC Procurement Team were planning activity with local care homes to improve quality of
provision, and the involvement of the Select Committee would support this process.

Several factors impacting upon CQC inspection

outcomes were found, including poor care ‘Outstanding

planning, lack of personalised care, and poor ‘The service is performing exceptionally well.
records management. Most  significantly, Good

however, recruitment and retention issues The service is performing well and meeting our
remained key challenges across the sector, with a expectations.

number of local providers experiencing high
turnover of management and staff. The Council
was actively working to drive-up standards and
performance, and the Committee commended its
guality assurance work and the introduction of the
Well-Led Programme which had contributed to
improved CQC ratings over the last 12 months.

Requires improvement
The service isn't performing as well as it should
and we have told the service how it must improve.

Inadequate
The service is performing badly and we've taken
action against the person or organisation that runs it.

L X X B

Nine recommendations were made which reflected the importance of strong leadership and
management, promoted personalised care and the benefits of technology (particularly around
records and medicines management), and sought to ensure appropriate staffing levels were
maintained. Improving the perception of a career in adult social care was a further proposal, as was
the need for the facilitation of effective dialogue between SBC and the regulator. Reported to
Cabinet: February 2020

Impact...
Contributed to continued improvement in local care home CQC ratings.
Supported continued, and widened, access to the Council’'s successful Well-Led
Programme.
Encouraged the development of varied activities programmes within and outside care
homes.
Stockton Digital Care Homes Group established to implement digital connectivity
solutions, and excellent uptake by providers for the Data Security and Protection Toolkit
(DSPT).
Number of care homes utilising National Early Warning Score (NEWS) observations has
increased significantly, which has helped staff identify a deteriorating person.
Called for the Council to promote and improve the local standing of careers in adult
social care — six-month pilot focusing on recruitment and retention in the care sector
subsequently undertaken.
Improved relationship between SBC and the CQC regarding intelligence / data-sharing.
Strengthened reporting of CQC and PAMMS inspection results to Committee.

Page 52


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att38230.doc

Hospital Discharge (Phase 1: discharge to care homes) 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

In an extension to the originally intended Hospital Discharge review (focusing on discharge from
hospital to an individual’s own home), this first phase briefly examined the impact of the 2020 COVID-
19 pandemic on hospital discharge to care homes, an issue which gained national attention following
the UK Government’s response to a surge of hospital admissions in March 2020. The review focused
on the national guidance, the process around hospital discharge to care homes, and any potential
learning ahead of an anticipated second COVID-19 surge.

Some of the Borough’s care homes expressed unease at
bl being pressured into accepting patients without knowing

% of people: there has been a life chai

if they were infected, as well as the, at times, unclear
nature of discharge arrangements. Already established
relationships between local health and care providers,
however, were further enhanced via the onset of regular
multi-agency meetings from March 2020, and the support
provided by North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation
Trust was commended, in particular the work of the
Infection Prevention and Control team (whose guidance
and training was frequently heralded by care homes as
part of this review) and the Community Matrons.

Figure 1: Discharge to Assess model

Reassuringly, local services in both the health and social care sectors indicated that they felt better-
prepared ahead of a second COVID-19 surge following experiences from the first phase, though
controlling numbers requiring hospital admission and, in turn, discharge to care homes remained
critical. The Committee was mindful, though, that the actions of national Government, and the
compliance of the general population to any local restrictions put in place, were outside the control
of local health and social care providers, who were ultimately left to manage what remained an
unpredictable and fast-changing public health emergency. Reported to Cabinet: November 2020

Impact...

e Urged the continued regular engagement between local NHS Trusts, SBC and care
providers regarding escalation-planning and how this would be managed.
Enabled local care homes to raise issues and recommended (and subsequently received)

responses from North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust regarding
communication concerns (which were then fully addressed by the Trust and led to
strengthened links).

Supported regular testing of care home staff and residents, and a quicker turnaround in
the notification of test results which became available to providers within 24-48 hours.

Hospital Discharge (Phase 2: discharge to own home) 2020-2021 / 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

The second phase of the Hospital Discharge review focused on the discharge of individuals from
hospital back to their own home (not care homes). The Committee’s main aims were to examine
the discharge process from local hospitals who provide treatment for the Borough’s adult residents
(including the wider communication with relevant partner organisations around hospital discharge),
and to ascertain the key issues around discharge from both an NHS Trust and patient perspective
to ensure a safe and sustained return home following hospital input. A further element was to explore
how carers were identified when needing hospital treatment and the measures required for ensuring
the people they care for were supported during their stay in hospital (and potentially for a time
following their discharge). Reflecting on the information gathered, the Committee would then seek
to determine if any improvements could be made to existing policies and procedures.

Page 53


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39360.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att40837.pdf

Following detailed contributions from a range of local health | NHS |
and care providers, the Committee fully supported the | ™™™
emphasis on getting individuals back to their usual residence | Your hospital

at the earliest opportunity (once it was clinically safe to do so) | discharge: going home
via the Discharge to Assess model and Home First initiative. | #zs  This leafletexplains why you are being

discharged from hospital and what you

Evidence of well-established local NHS Trust and social care mightexpect after your discharge.
co-working (e.g. Integrated Discharge Team, Integrated | whyamibeingdischarged Whatcani expect?

. . . . . . from hospital? Your health team will discuss
Single Point of Access, involvement in discharge planning) | ve.esees T N

hospital as your health team have member, friend or carer if you wish).

was once again widely welcomed, as was the planning of | msegneyeuerenenasets oy reauire care and auppor

when you get home, this will be
od

discharge from the point of admission (and the stated | whycantistayin —

hospital? If you need more care now than
when you came into hospital, this

involvement of the patient and their identified family / carers in | = Core'uil be proveied free

able to lock after pocplommnud of charge for up to six weeks 1o
hospital care. Due to this, once you  support your recovery. After this

these discussions). Enhancing processes around the | reirssreeacasinncspis ’ss

decidedby the heaith team looking
ser you, you wll be discharged. it

identification of, and engagement with, young carers and | & s oo i

you to the best possible placeto

providing clarity around post-discharge follow-up and / or | ™=

You will not be able to reman in

signposting to other routes of support were areas for periay “:';‘M";’.ww S
development. Reported to Cabinet: July 2021

Impact...

o Local NHS Trust discharge policies reviewed / updated to reflect the Committee’s findings.

o Greater focus on identifying carers (of all ages) and raising awareness of / working with
carer support services (i.e. Eastern Ravens for young carers).

Highlighted the successful NTHFT Home But Not Alone pilot and urged relevant partners
to ensure plans for the continuation of the Five Lamps Home from Hospital initiative were
in place beyond mid-2022 when funding was due to expire (this was subsequently
extended).

Multi-Agency Support to Care Homes during the COVID-19 Pandemic (T&F) 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

This task and finish review sought to consider and understand the interplay between the local health
and care sector since the emergence of COVID-19, analyse relevant data and intelligence in relation
to local care home providers as part of assessing the impact of support provided by key stakeholders,
and determine if any improvements could be made to current policies and practice. Care home-
related updates provided to the Committee in the previous 18 months, as well as the findings and
subsequent actions undertaken regarding two scrutiny reviews the Committee had completed
involving care homes, namely Care Homes for Older People (pre-COVID) and Hospital Discharge
(Phase 1) (discharge to care homes during the COVID-19 pandemic), were also factored in.

Local data demonstrated that, despite widespread concerns aired in the national media regarding
individuals being discharged from hospitals to care homes in the early stages of the pandemic
without having a COVID-19 test, almost all COVID-19 cases within the Borough’s care homes could
not be attributed to hospital discharge. Indeed, no evidence was found of any correlation between
the first discharge to a care home from a hospital setting and any COVID-19 infection of residents
(average time from first discharge to first infection was 49 days).

Stockton Multi-Agency Care Home SupportGroup | Strong local partnership-working was again evident, including the
support provided via several collaborative groups initiated in
response to COVID-19 (not just within the Borough but also
regionally). Ensuring such initiatives involved input from care
home residents’ families / carers was reinforced by the
Committee, which also expressed concern regarding the
approach of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) during this time
and the sense of a shortfall in oversight from the regulator.
Reported to Cabinet: November 2021

Infaction, preveation and
trsining snd support as req

10


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att41523.pdf

Impact...

e Stressed the importance of ensuring the voice of residents and their families / carers is
clearly articulated (whether through direct representation or via another appropriate
mechanism) in any current and future multi-agency professional group that is convened
to support care homes.

Continued efforts to reach-out to those staff who remained reluctant to receive a COVID-
19 vaccination.

Recommended continuation of the Care Home Protection Group (now known as the
Social Care Protection Operational Group) was subsequently realised, with a refreshed
Terms of Reference to broaden its scope, and a focus on how best to gain direct feedback
from residents and families.

Day Opportunities for Adults 2021-2022 / 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

The main aims for this review were threefold. Firstly, it sought to understand the current model used
by SBC to deliver day opportunities, including their purpose, accessibility and promotion. Secondly,
it wanted to ascertain the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic which, in light of the development of
new remote approaches to support the wellbeing of individuals, had prompted an understandable
reflection on what and how day opportunities are offered in the Borough. Finally, the Committee
was keen on learning about alternative methods of delivery from a community-based perspective
which could potentially herald a move away from traditional building-based ‘service-driven’ provision.

People using these services are generally
some of the Borough’s most vulnerable
residents and very often have families and
carers whose own wellbeing is directly
impacted. Enabling a wider range of
community-based day opportunities that are
meaningful to individuals was fully supported
by the Committee, though there was also much
evidence of the satisfaction of, and indeed
reliance on, existing building-based provision
from people who access services and their
families / carers.

Several recommendations were made,
including the creation of co-production groups
that can support the future development of day Virtual Site Visit: Allensway (Feb 22)
opportunities, stronger links between SBC Adults

and Health and SBC Children’s Services directorates to identify and support opportunities that are
most meaningful to younger people (as part of transitioning), and follow-up work with Catalyst
regarding the views of the wider VCSE sector around future day opportunities involvement. A new
provider peer group to share good practice / resources (inc. volunteering opportunities as a gateway
to employment) was also proposed. Reported to Cabinet: May 2022

Impact...

e Specifications for future day opportunity contracts have been updated to include a
requirement that providers have measures in place to enable people accessing services
to establish involvement mechanisms.

Regular meetings have taken place between Catalyst and SBC to collaborate on
information-sharing and establish stronger relationships between day opportunity
providers and the VCSE sector.

Page 55


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42653.pdf

Care at Home 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

This scrutiny topic gave the Committee the opportunity to understand the Care at Home system
(regulations, promotion of, access to, funding / costs to the individual (inc. use of direct payments),
Council involvement) and how the Council contracts for Care at Home. Assessing the existing quality
of provision of the Council’s contracted providers was another key feature, as was ascertaining the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Committee then sought to establish future priorities for this
type of service to ensure continued good-quality provision which was available in the right place at
the right time.

The Committee learnt about the
refreshed contracting approach
following reflections upon previous
arrangements which highlighted
challenges around performance
levels and staff travel time. The
Council’'s management of contracts
Acion through a variety of both proactive
and reactive intelligence-gathering
routes appeared robust, and the lack
of a significant waiting list (around 10 as of November 2022) suggested that the local market was
being catered for at present, though with a level of fragility that had developed since the beginning
of this year. This was principally down to staff recruitment and retention issues and the significant
escalation in costs during 2022.

PRO-ACTIVE REACTIVE

Quality Threshold Level 3

Major concems

Enhanced monitoring/
proactive intorvension

As well as provider engagement, the Committee was keen to seek
the views of those accessing services (and their families / informal
carers). Themes to emerge included issues around communication
(lack of clarity regarding visit times and changes to visits (times and
staff attending); problems liaising with offices), duration of visits (not
long enough), and some uncertainty on how to raise a complaint /
concern — however, comments about the actual care received were
generally positive. In conclusion, the Committee called for V|EWS
authorities to fully support the Care at Home sector (thereby M ATTER
boosting its profile and also helping alleviate pressures on other
already stretched parts of the health and care system) or face the
possible consequences of a dwindling number of providers
operating in the market. Reported to Cabinet: January 2023

Impact...

o Recommendations made to further boost the profile of the Care at Home sector and
encourage joint-working between the Council and providers around recruitment and
retention. Improving communications between provider and service-user regarding any
changes to planned visits was another focus, as was the facilitation of platforms for all
providers to share ideas / learning / concerns, and closer links between the sector and
local NHS Trusts.

Joint letter from the Committee Chair and SBC Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care
sent to the Minister of State in the Department of Health and Social Care regarding the
key findings of the review and reiterating the need for appropriate future support of the
sector.

e Action Plan in relation to the review’s recommendations approved in February 2023 —
monitoring of progress to follow in 2023-2024 (and beyond if required).

12
Page 56


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44044.pdf

Further Committee Scrutiny

As well as conducting in-depth reviews, the Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee
considers a range of other health and care-related activity which takes place within the Borough.
Adopting a collaborative approach with internal services and the Council’s external partners, key
items include the presentation of annual reports, reflections on the findings of the independent
regulator of health and social care in England, and holding providers to account.

One of the most important roles of the Committee is to consider the North Tees and Hartlepool NHS
Foundation Trust’'s (NTHFT) Quality Account. Members receive an annual presentation outlining
performance against the Trust’s quality priorities and the emerging priorities for the year ahead. The
Committee then prepares a statement of assurance for inclusion in the Trust's final published
version.

A host of other Annual Reports are presented to the Committee during the year which allows
Members to identify areas of good practice and challenge / seek assurance for any elements which
are a cause for concern. These are provided by Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB),
Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees, and the Care Quality Commission (CQC), whose representatives
have attended Committee to highlight the key aspects of their national ‘State of Care’ report, as well
as comment on the local health and care environment.

CARE QUALITY COMMISSION (CQC) INSPECTION QUTCOMES
&

Another regular feature of the Committee’s work is to
consider quarterly CQC reports which give an overview of
the regulator’s published findings following inspections of
local health and care providers. Significantly impacted by
the emergence of COVID-19 in early-2020, the Committee

STOCKTON-ON-TEES BOROUGH COUNCIL (SBC)
PROVIDER ASSESSMENT AND MARKET MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS
(PAMMS) ASSESSMENT REPORTS

QUARTER 3 2022-2023

The CQC is the national inspectarate for registered health and adult care Services. Inspection
reparts are reqularly produced, and these are published on a weekly basis

The CQC assesses and rales services as being "0t

', ‘Good', “Requires ' ar
‘Inadequate’. Where providers are found to be in need of improvement or inadequate, the CQC
make recommendations for improvement and / or enfercement action. Specific actions taken in each

has repeatedly expressed concern to the CQC about its
level of visibility, the detail of its reports, and the length of
time between inspections. Issues have also been raised
about the new inspection regime which the CQC has
adopted.

In terms of the CQC quarterly report, as the number of
published inspection outcomes has reduced since 2020,
the Committee has increasingly leant on the Council’s

case can be found in the relevant inspection report

Whera inspections are relevant to the Borough, a summary of the outcome is circulated to all
Members each month. An update from Adult Services is included which summarises the position in
relation to service provision and any actions taken at that time,

Quarterly Summary of Published Reports.

This update includes inspection reports published between October and December 2022 (inclusive)
These are included at Appendix 1 and contain the results of all inspections of services based in the
Borough (irespective of whether they are commissioned by the Counci).

During this quarter, 16 inspection results were published. Please nate: there is a time lag between
dates of the inspection and the publication of the report. In addition, where concerns are identified
by the CQC, re-inspections may take place soon after the intial report is published. When the
outcomes are made available within the same quarter, the result of the most recent report is included
in this update.

The main outcomes from the reports are as follows:

« 11 Adult Care services were reported on (6 rated ‘Good"; 4 rated ‘Requires Improvement'; 1 rated
Inadequate’)

« 1 Primary Medical Care service was reported on (1 rated ‘Good)

* 4 Hospital / Other Health Care services were reported on (2 rated ‘Outstanding’; 1 rated ‘Good’,
1 rated ‘Requires Improvement)

PAMMS reports which are now included within these
guarterly deliberations. PAMMS (Provider Assessment
and Market Management Solutions) is an online
assessment tool developed in collaboration with Directors
of Adult Social Services (ADASS) East and regional Local
Authorities., and is designed to assist in assessing the
guality of care delivered by providers. PAMMS assessments
consist of a series of questions over a number of domains and quality standards that forms a risk-
based scoring system to ensure equality of approach.

A summary of each repart and actions taken (correct at the time the COC inspection report was
publishad) is outlined below. Links to the full version of the reports, and previous ratings where
applicable, are alse included

PAMMS Assessment Reports

SBC are utiising the Provider Assessment and Market Management Solutions (PAMMS) in the
quality assurance process. PAMMS is an online assessment tool developed in collaboration with
Direciors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) East and regional Local Authorities. It is designed to
assist in assessing the quality of care delivered by providers. The PAMMS assessment consists of

Pagelof 46

In discharging its duty to hold providers to account, the Committee has requested responses from
key local organisations which had seen concerns raised by the regulator in relation to their services.
Representatives of Butterwick Limited attended Committee in February 2022 to address long-
standing CQC concerns at both Butterwick Hospice Stockton (adults) and Butterwick House (children
/ young people), and senior staff from NTHFT gave a presentation in November 2022 in response to
issues raised in relation to the Trust's maternity services. Much time has also been given to the
ongoing challenges being experienced by Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust
(TEWV), concerns which resulted in the Committee sending a letter to the then Secretary of State
for Health and Social Care calling for a public inquiry into the continued failings and lack of notable
improvement of the Trust.

13
Page 57



Children and Young People Select Committee

Domestic Abuse and its Impact on Children (Task & Finish) 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

This review was undertaken by a small Task and Finish Group of Committee Members. The overall
aim of the review was to better understand the impact of domestic abuse on children and the
effectiveness of interventions to inform the Domestic Abuse Strategy and future commissioning
decisions.

Evidence was received from Council employees, representatives from Harbour and from the Police.
During the course of the review Members were presented with a range of information which depicted
the service demand was increasing and the rise in domestic abuse incident reports. Multi-agency
working was highlighted as a important tool and early contact could be invaluable.

The review culminated in a number of recommendations aimed at providing training led by the
Domestic Abuse Steering Group, establishing clear communication pathways and collaboration
opportunities. Reported to Cabinet: January 2020

Impact...

o Families have benefited from the provision of the ALTER programme which has been
delivered by Harbour’s Link Worker in Children’s Social Care. Had this provision not been
available, there is a risk that the perpetrators of abuse who engaged in the ALTER
programme may not have any intervention at all.

An approach to domestic abuse training will be embedded within the forthcoming
Domestic Abuse Strategy 2023-2028.

The Domestic Abuse Steering Group now receives regular feedback from Cleveland
Police and Education Leads on the effectiveness of Operation Encompass and this has
been in place from February 2020.

Opportunities for collaboration and joint working have been considered across the Tees
| Tees Valley footprint. Collaboration has brought greater insight and understanding of
those impacted by domestic abuse and has directly contributed to an increase in
treatment pathways for perpetrators.

Careers Provision 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

The overall aim of the review was to
develop a clear and joined-up
approach across Stockton which
supports schools in their role, is clear
on the role of all partners including the
Council, and how the system can work
more effectively for young people.

The Select Committee recognised that
a meaningful and positive careers
programme improves self-esteem,
promotes higher attainment, reduces
drop-out rates from schools and
colleges and has significant economic
benefits. The Gatsby Benchmarks
provided the framework for best practice

" GatsbyBenchmarks

A framework of 8 guidelines that define the best
careers provision in education.

14
Page 58


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att37946.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att38422.pdf

in career guidance and our recommendations sought to encourage all of our schools and colleges
to aspire to meeting these standards. This will, in turn, enable our children and young people to make
informed choices and better understand the opportunities that are open to them as they transition
from education into employment. Reported to Cabinet: March 2020

Impact...
Destinations data showed a limited impact of lockdowns, on both the 2020 and 2021
school leaver cohorts which suggests the CEIAG work that was completed, was effective.
All education establishments in the Careers Hub were encouraged to ensure students
have access to Independent and Impatrtial Careers Guidance from a qualified adviser.

Continue to enable and encourage schools to maintain a lead from senior management
teams on their Governing bodies.

The Council worked with stakeholders to promote opportunities for apprenticeships and
work experience across the Borough.

Significant increases in schools meeting the Gatsby Benchmarks.

Cost of School Uniform 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

The aim of the review was to understand the issues raised by residents about the cost of school
uniform and the opportunities locally to support parents in meeting those costs. It was recognised
that the Council had a limited role in relation to this issue which was largely a matter for schools. The
focus of the review was therefore on working with schools to identify the issues for them and for
parents and identifying if there are options to support parents in meeting the costs of school uniform.

Cost of school uniforms: the impact on children — proportion of children affected (2015 and 2018)

20%
18% 17%

1% 13%

14%
i;x 10%  11% 10%
s 7% 8% - = 7% o 6% 7% &
t ol 1l al B BN
= W 1 [l

Choice of  Chld wearing Child wearing Child wearing Child sent Cutting Getting inte  Berrowing
schoal incarrect unelean il fitting heme fram  spending on debt money form
unifarm unifarm unifarm schoaol for food and someone else
wearing basic
incorrect essentials
unifarm

m2015 m2018

N=948 in 2015, 946 in 2018

Through the course of the review, it was found that school uniformed played an important role in
contributing to the ethos of a school and sets the tone of the school. It was a way of ensuring that
children living in disadvantage were not identifiable through their clothing. Schools needed to ensure
that uniform was accessible and affordable. The Committee also recognised the importance of
providing support to families struggling to meet uniform costs and were impressed by the support
offered by Stockton-on-Tees schools and local community organisations. Reported to Cabinet:
December 2020

Impact...
e The Select Committee report was well received by Academy Trusts and Schools.
Messages were reinforced at Closing and Gap Sessions, Secondary and Primary Heads

meetings and Governors’ Briefing Sessions.
Support was secured from the two local MPs and new legislation was subsequently passed
putting the DfE best practice guidance on a statutory footing.

15
Page 59


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39602.pdf

Care Leavers EET 2020-2021 / 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

The main aim of the review was to examine whether the Council was doing enough and what more
needed to be done to further improve performance and outcomes for young people.

The Select Committee found that more work needed to be done for Children in Our Care regarding
the transition into independent living. It was recognised that Children in Our Care did not enjoy the
inherited opportunities and access to family help and support. Often struggling to overcome issues
with mental and emotional health and low aspirations, these children can feel locked out from
achieving success.

A number of recommendations were formulated as part of this review which sought to recommend
more help for Children in Our Care to become work ready and maximise their opportunities through
strengthened partnership working and a sustainable model to increase access to work experience
and job opportunities with local employers and partners agencies. Reported to Cabinet: July 2021

Impact...
Data used to be recorded on an annual basis but was now live data; continuous tracking
had led to significant improvements and transformation
New structures had brought teams together to meet demand and capacity; a clear vision

allowed for workers to ensure that the child remained at the centre of the plan

There had been an increase in young people moving towards Employment, Education and
Training; performance was now above the national average

Child Poverty 2021-2022 / 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

The overall aim of the review was to gain an insight and understand the specific issues relating to
child poverty.

Data presented to the Committee showed that a large proportion of children in the Northeast were
living in poverty, the second highest rate in the UK. Due to a number of factors the Committee were
made aware that this position would worsen significantly due to welfare changes, the increased cost
of living, energy prices rising and lack of employment security.

% of children living in relative poverty, after housing costs

—

25

20

15
2004/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/1E 2018/10 2019/20

—>5Stockton Borough — Stockton North — Stockton South —UK

16
Page 60


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att40870.doc
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42858.pdf

Evidence presented to the Committee demonstrated that the impact of poverty on children is
profound. With children experiencing a range of health damaging impacts, negative educational
outcomes, long term social and psychological problems, and poor life chances in adulthood.

The recommendations from this review sought to better understand the issues by working with
families experiencing poverty, to enhance the support and interventions in place and each year to
focus on a key priority for targeted action. Reported to Cabinet: June 2022

Impact...
Data used to be recorded on an annual basis but was now live data; continuous tracking
had led to significant improvements and transformation.

New structures had brought teams together to meet demand and capacity; a clear vision
allowed for workers to ensure that the child remained at the centre of the plan.

There had been an increase in young people moving towards Employment, Education and
Training; performance was now above the national average.

Contextual Safeguarding and Youth Relationships 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

The aim of the review was to assess the Council’s response and approach to the issues of contextual
safeguarding. This review examined the factors leading to a focus in this area and understand the
work of the multi-agency child exploitation (MACE) hub. Within this context, the review has also
examined violent and coercive behaviour in youth relationships.

(Barter, 2003; Firmin, 2017; Firmin, Wroe and Lloyd, 2019; Hudeck, 2018) Evidence presented tO the Committee
demonstrated as children grow, their sphere of
influence expands from their primary care

Neighbourhood
_ givers aI(_)ng with famlly and Iong-tlme_frlends
oer o to wider influences with access to the internet

and mobiles cutting across traditional barriers
extending their sphere of influences even
further. The review found tackling extra familial
risk requires a holistic approach involving a
wide range of partners and the community.
Reported to Cabinet: February 2023

Impact...

¢ The Committee’s recommendations sought to raise awareness of contextual safeguarding
and strengthen the local multi-agency response, including that clear outcome measures
are defined to determine success of interventions and approaches. Support around this
issue for SBC Children’s Services staff and schools was also encouraged, and a

community guardian programme within schools and communities across Stockton-on-
Tees was proposed in order to provide wider community support.

An Action Plan in relation to the review’s recommendations will be presented to the
Committee for approval early in the new Council term.

17
Page 61


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44334.docx

Crime and Disorder Select Committee

Protection of Vulnerable Older Residents Living at Home 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

In response to concerns regarding crime in local neighbourhoods, this review aimed to support local
residents who may be vulnerable due to their individual circumstances, including age and housing
arrangements. It undertook an assessment of local relevant public services and how they contribute
to the protection of the vulnerable, as well as an evaluation of local community infrastructure and
whether more support was needed to help promote safety and wellbeing of vulnerable residents.

Throughout the review, contributing organisations stressed the

importance of working in partnership, and that the relationships OneCall
evidenced during the Committee’s information-gathering were critical e
in protecting older people and promoting safety and wellbeing. e

OneCal

However, it was also noted that older people living at home may not
want help (even though their families may want them to have
assistance), and that organisations need to work sensitively to ensure
any needs are identified and met, whilst maintaining, as far as
possible, an older person’s independence.

Twelve recommendations ensued, headed by the need for the Office
of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) and Cleveland Police
to provide assurance around the measures put in place to address
the failings highlighted in the Force’'s recent HMICFRS PEEL
assessment around identifying vulnerable victims and providing
adequate safeguarding. Further requests were directed at the Council
and its key partners, Thirteen Housing Group and Catalyst,and a continued push for better
information-sharing between local organisations was advised. Reported to Cabinet: January 2020

e offer assistance 24
ek, 365 days a year.

Impact...

¢ Commitment made by all partners to continue to share information in a timely manner.
Intra-partnership information-sharing saw further improvements since the emergence of
COVID-19, supported by developments in technological aids such as Microsoft Teams

which allow for quick and efficient meetings.

Catalyst’s VCSE directory updated — includes befriending and other support services in
the local VCSE sector that can be offered to a wide range of residents including those
older residents living independently at home. Older people feature as a dedicated
category, along with a breakdown of services which provide ‘social inclusion’.

CCfA: Obstructive and lllegal Parking around Whitehouse Primary School 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

A Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) provides Councillors with the opportunity to ask for a discussion
to take place at scrutiny committees on issues where local problems have arisen, and where all other
methods of resolving the issue have been exhausted. The issue of obstructive and illegal parking
around Whitehouse Primary School was proposed and subsequently approved for consideration by
the Committee, whereupon a detailed investigation ensued involving key stakeholders such as Ward
Councillors, relevant Council officers, senior representatives from the school, and residents and
parents who were keen to put forward their views.

Pertinent to the problems associated with Whitehouse Primary School was the increase in pupils
from beyond the designated admission zone and the geographical nuances of the school, factors

18
Page 62


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att37950.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att37952.pdf

which are extremely difficult to influence. Whilst greater enforcement of illegal parking would be
welcomed (at all schools), restrictions around current enforcement resources hinders the Council’s
ability to penalise such activity as much as many would like. It would also be unfair to single out one
school above others for increased enforcement patrols.

-
»
(V OUR SCHOOL IS NOT A PARKING LOT

Our school is a safe environment for children.
Cars are starting to invade our area, which
could cause our children's safety to become
endangered.

Cars are a great invention but if used too
much then can become bad for your self, it
can make you: over-weight, unhealthy and it
is also teaching your children that driving is
better than walking.

Please take notice of our words, we do not
Just say this to annoy you, we really do care.

From the children of Whitehouse

Concluding that the suggested Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to ban / regulate parking
was not appropriate, the Committee instead agreed a number of alternative measures which both
supplemented previous work on this issue, and provided further means of promoting more
responsible parking around the school itself. Reported to Cabinet: January 2020

Impact...

e Termly correspondence sent by the school to parents / carers regarding parking issues
(includes development and circulation of a ‘parking pledge’), with evidence of more
considerate parking based on cumulative impact of all measures.

School purchased ‘little people bollards’ to deter inconsiderate parking — concept shared
with other schools within the Borough.

20mph speed limit on the Barlborough Avenue side of the school since implemented.
New Junior Road Safety Officers appointed (including at Whitehouse Primary School).
Research into ‘School Streets’ initiative (awaiting decision on possible implementation).

Fly-Grazed Horses 2019-2020 / 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

Fly-grazed horses are those that are being deliberately allowed to graze on land (either on a tether
or roaming free) without the landowner’s (private or Local Authority) permission. They pose a real
risk to public health, whether wandering onto roads due to being grazed on land with inadequate or
poorly maintained fencing (as happened during an incident on Durham Lane, Eaglescliffe, in October
2019), or breaking free from tethers. Horses may also be left to graze in public spaces, making
footpaths, play areas and nature reserves unsafe for users / pedestrians, and create significant
restoration costs caused by damage to Council assets / land.

This review comprised several important elements, the first of which
involved the establishment of the Council's and other relevant
organisations’ roles and responsibilities for fly-grazed horses on both
Council and non-Council land. Other aspects included identifying the
extent of concerns across the Borough in relation to fly-grazed horses,
understanding the costs to the Council in undertaking its statutory

19

Page 63


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39790.pdf

responsibilities (and beyond), and considering more proactive means of addressing fly-grazed
horses via education or enforcement options which may be used with horse-owners. Finally, the
intention was for this review to provide conclusions and recommendations which could inform the
creation of a formal Council fly-grazed horses policy.

In attempting to address the longstanding concerns associated with this practice, the Committee
discovered a rather short-term and potted historical approach which lacked an overarching policy
that made clear who should be doing what and by when. That said, this issue is not an easy one to
address. The Committee respect the rights of individuals to own horses, but also the rights of other
residents across the Borough not to be affected by a horse being fly-grazed near to their property,
or for people to be at risk of horses escaping from fields after being placed there. The ensuing
recommendations sought to establish clearly defined processes, supported and adhered to by all
key stakeholders and made available to increase public awareness, which would provide a
framework for managing future cases. Reported to Cabinet: January 2021

Impact...

e Cleveland Police intend to produce a protocol based on Kent Police’s response
(essentially a recovery and green yard service). Need for policy added to the Police
Executive Risk Register.

Council webpages publicly available containing horse welfare information, advice to
landowners and the public, as well as SBC and RSPCA contact details (will be available

for hosting formal policy document once live). Since updated to note public information
for equine identification law, advice for tethering, grazing on Council Land and advice for
private landowners.
SBC officers continue to support both horse-owners and those impacted by illegal
grazing, and retain contact details and close relationships with all horse-owners.

¢ Cleveland Police senior and operational staff identified to work with SBC Animal Welfare.

Fraud Awareness (Personal) 2020-2021 / 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

The aim of this review was principally two-fold: firstly, to raise awareness of fraud against the person,
and secondly, to ascertain the ways in which local victims of this crime were identified and supported.
In addition, the Committee sought to understand the process for reporting (personal) fraud offences,
including the role of key stakeholders in the handling of cases, and establish how the public were
made aware of the required reporting mechanisms (and how this was reinforced by local
organisations, including work around reducing the risk of becoming a victim of fraud). Mindful of the
ongoing pandemic, the identification of any local COVID-19-related fraud concerns (and whether any
targeted awareness-raising / support may be required) would also be an important factor in this work.

The Committee found that fraud was a
complex and, sadly, all too prevalent crime in -
today’s world. The broad range of national, A t F d
regional and local organisations (a number of c Ion rau
whom were listed within the report) involved National Fraud & Cyber Crime Reporting Centre
in countering those manipulative perpetrators L0300 123 2040 %"
of this practice were testament to the
frequency in which it was carried out.
Understandingly, this was often in a reactive way as fraudsters continually change their point of
attack, seizing upon opportunities that, latterly, had even stooped to seeking gain from a global
pandemic. The Committee fully supported every available means to bring such people to justice.

20
Page 64


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att40515.pdf

Behind every act of fraud is a victim, a fact that can sometimes be overlooked when analysing crime
trends and attempting to nullify perpetrators, and a key message from this review was that everyone
was susceptible to this type of crime (not just older people as some would believe). Locally, the
Victim Care and Advice Service (VCAS) provided invaluable support to victims, but was subject to
potential demand pressures as a result of the drive to increase the reporting of fraudulent activity
and continually emerging scams. Reported to Cabinet: May 2021

Impact...

e Views of the Committee encouraging the sharing of relevant fraud information with SBC
(laid out in a subsequent letter from Lead Cabinet Member) expressed to Action Fraud.
Post-review inspection by the City of London Police stated that Cleveland Police were
good at supporting victims and safeguarding the most vulnerable victims of fraud.
Ongoing efforts to spread the fraud prevention and scams awareness message continue

across a range of forums — one particular social media post on a banking scam reached
over 10,000 people and was shared widely.

Article concerning rogue traders carrying out home maintenance and repair work was
included in the Spring 2022 edition of Stockton News. An article on Christmas scams
was planned for the next Winter edition.

16 key scams awareness messages distributed to the SBC Bright Minds Big Futures
(BMBF) initiative to aid awareness-raising around fraud crime with young people.

Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish) 2021-2022

(click here for full report)

This task and finish review focused on information-sharing and communications in Stockton-on-Tees
between neighbourhood policing, local Ward Councillors, local residents and other key stakeholders.
It sought to ensure that appropriate information-sharing mechanisms were in place with a view to
strengthening effective partnership-working within the Borough.

The Committee’s Task and Finish

(@), Cleveland Police Group  found that  numerous
B Community Engagement Ward Pledge engagement mechanisms were used

Every neighbourhood in Cleveland has a dedicated Neighbourhood Policing Team (NPT) that works together with the local

by Cleveland Police, both internally

community and partners to:

/ Prevent ciime and ant social behaviour and
tackling criminality
W/ Care and support our people

As a minimum

L Key message statements from the NPT Chief Inspector to
your elected representatives on a monthly basis

B & Regular contact with relevant partners to address
neighbourhood priorities

/ An undate to the community of progress against the identiy
progress

\// A two-way mechanism to obtain views, advice and feedback
from the community

/ Serve the public and put our communites t the
heart of all we do
& Recognise and safeguard vulnerable victims

, we pledge to provide:

W/ Bespoke Ward Newsletters on a bi-monthly basis

W At least one community meeting per month in each Ward

S Scanning and analysis of local issues to identify up to three
Ward priorities on a bi-monthly basis

/A designated Police Commurity Support Officer (PCSO)
assigned to every school

and externally, in order to carry out
and communicate its core functions.
Ensuring officers within Cleveland
Police recognise the critical role of
Councillors as a partnership-tool with
which to address policing issues was
emphasised, as was the importance of

the communications feedback-loop
which, if effective, enables confidence
to be built between the Force and
Councillors / the public.

\// Engagement opportunities with ongoing youth outreach in

NPT th ity and faith
N4 to engage with community and faith groups -

/ Advance notice of community engagement opportunities via /" Effective use of social media to engage communities and
the Ward newsletter and social media platforms provide effective feedback

o/ Ward profiles to help understand the demographics and

W Visible patrols in hotspots for anti-social behaviour and crime
engagement needs of each area in the Force

Concerns were expressed about the Force seemingly being in a constant state of change, with
officers across all ranks arriving and departing at an alarming rate which inevitably impacts upon the
ability to forge relationships within communities. Whilst alternative methods of communicating
(accelerated as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic) were to be embraced, being as physically visible
within Wards as possible would continue to be important for Councillors (as evidenced with the Ward
Councillor survey undertaken as part of this review) and their residents (as reflected in the desire for
more Police visibility via recent consultations) as the Force looks to deliver strong engagement as
part of its service plans. Reported to Cabinet: January 2022

21

Page 65


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att41976.pdf

Impact...
e All Stockton district PCSOs asked to make monthly contact with their Ward Councillors.
e Stockton neighbourhood officers have a Victims Code of Practice (VCOP) compliance
rate of 100% for their 102 live crimes (as of 02/11/2022).
SBC Ward Councillor survey (undertaken as part of the review) was repeated in October

2022 — feedback demonstrated that there were still very mixed feelings about the level of
communications with Cleveland Police.

So far in 2023, Stockton Neighbourhood Policing Team have recorded the highest level
of face-to-face engagement with the public across the entire force area by a significant
margin. Furthermore, other engagement activity has also continued.

Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOSs) 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

This scrutiny topic provided the opportunity for the Committee to consider the potential benefits and
challenges from introducing a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) within the Borough. It allowed
the Committee to understand what a PSPO was (powers designed to stop individuals or groups from
committing anti-social behaviour (ASB) in a public space, they can include restrictions on consuming
alcohol in a public place or controlling the presence of dogs) and the process which needs to be
followed, consider existing ASB it could help to address, and learn about the experiences of other
Local Authorities, many of whom had utilised such Orders as an additional tool to respond to crime
/ ASB in their areas. Crucially, what the review did not set out to do was to decide whether a PSPO
should actually be implemented.

The Committee found that, whilst the Council was well-placed to be [Loca {8
aware of the community safety issues within the locality and already | Sovemment
had a range of options to counter ASB, concerns clearly continue (as
evidenced in the report) around the behaviour of a minority of
individuals who were having an adverse impact on the Borough’s
public spaces. Perceptions and fear of crime continued to be high,
and, as noted by several contributors to this review, this was as | Public Spaces
important and significant as actual recorded cases. As such, the case | Protection Orders
for exploring further options was strong, especially if these options led | ¢yigance for councils

to more visible and quicker action to instil confidence in the public.

Evidence demonstrated that there were a range of opinions around
PSPOs (including widespread concerns that they target vulnerable
individuals), and the Council must therefore ensure that, should it
wish to proceed with plans for a potential Order within the Borough, it
seeks views from a wide variety of stakeholders (i.e. public, local
businesses, special interest groups (depending on the issues an Order seeks to prohibit), key
partners) to validate any future decision. Reported to Cabinet: February 2022

Impact...

e To reinforce existing mechanisms for reporting ASB and promote operational successes
in identifying and addressing ASB within the Borough, a shared approach for partnership
communications has been developed further, including an increase in media releases and
leaflet drops / Civic Enforcement Officer visits to hot-spot areas.

Easy-read flowchart of the existing PSPO consultation, implementation and review
procedures finalised and circulated to relevant stakeholders.
e Formal definition of ‘aggressive begging’ adopted by SBC.

Page 66


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42178.pdf

Bonfires on Public Land 2021-2022 / 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

Like many Local Authority areas, Stockton-on-Tees experiences an increase in bonfires between
mid-October and mid-November each year. However, whilst bonfires themselves bring an inherent
safety and environmental risk to the local community, associated disorder linked to this practice has
become as much, if not more, of an issue for the Council and its local partners to manage during the
traditional ‘bonfire night’ season.

Focusing on bonfire activity upon public land, the aims
of this review were to firstly establish the extent of
bonfire-related concerns (e.g. personal safety, damage
to property, fly-tipping, etc.) within the Borough during
the traditional ‘bonfire night’ season. The Committee
then sought to understand what the Council and its
partners had historically done to identify, address and
reduce bonfire-related issues, and then investigate
what, if any, further measures could be put in place to
strengthen the management, or reduction, of bonfires
during this time period.

In summary, there was a general consensus from all partners who contributed to this review that
bonfires themselves were not a major issue within the Borough (greater concerns were expressed
in relation to the associated behaviours around bonfires (as well as fireworks)), though the
Committee acknowledged that sporadic cases across Stockton-on-Tees had previously provided
challenges for the Council and its partners despite the very established annual planning, response
and review joint-working. Continuing to focus resources on these identified areas (and any emerging
ones), particularly around education and diversion, remained paramount in the drive to further reduce
the negative elements which bonfires can clearly foster. Reported to Cabinet: September 2022

Impact...

e Recommendations called for the Council to review its own public engagement approach
to fire safety messaging across all available communication mechanisms (highlighting the
dangers of bonfires and the impact on local residents), as well as consider adopting the
Shrewsbury Town Council approach in emphasising a zero tolerance towards
unauthorised bonfires (including contact routes for permission to light a bonfire on public
land and the potential consequences for failing to seek permission).

Tree Asset Management 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

Whilst not explicitly crime and disorder
related (this piece of work was allocated to
the Committee in order to balance the
distribution of scrutiny topics across the five
themed Select  Committees), this
predominantly internal review provided an
opportunity to consider the known issues
around maintenance of the Borough'’s tree
stock. Central to this was the substantial
growing backlog in essential and routine
programmed works that had been identified
through the ongoing inspection regime.

23

Page 67


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att43232.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44329.pdf

Storm Arwen leaves Stockton
Council tree teams stretched

The current SBC Tree and Woodland Management Service was
a very small team with responsibility for managing tens of
thousands of trees within the Borough’s towns, highways, parks,
cemeteries, open spaces and 400 hectares of woodland. The
service was clearly under huge pressure already, and attempts
to eat into the increasing delays to essential programmed work
were always at the mercy of external factors such as adverse
weather (creating potential emergency situations) and season-
specific activity, as well as resource limitations. Add to this the
Council’s additional tree planting commitment in response to the
ongoing climate crisis debate, and the emerging issue of ash
dieback disease, and the Committee expressed deep
reservations over the existing situation regarding management of
the Borough's trees.

The current financial climate for Local Authorities made it hard to justify recommending a spending
increase anywhere within the Council, though the Committee observed that tree planting was a SBC
priority — should this continue to be the case moving forward, it therefore seemed incumbent upon
the Council to back this up with an appropriate resource allocation which allowed its officers to
undertake the required maintenance of an enlarging tree stock, something which not only
strengthens the Borough’s move to a cleaner and greener future, but also ensures residents and
visitors are kept safe. If this could not happen, then it was imperative that the Council made it clear
to its residents what tree management service it could realistically deliver, and that this remains in-
line with its legal duty of care. Reported to Cabinet: February 2023

Impact...

¢ Recommendations included a refresh of the SBC tree and woodland management policy
and procedures to provide clarity around mandatory service requirements, the realistic
cycle of essential maintenance, responsibilities regarding trees on private land, and key
message throughout this review regarding the planting of the correct species of tree in

the right places (helping to minimise future maintenance requirements and revenue
costs). Strengthening service resources was also encouraged, and planning around ash
dieback was urged.
Action Plan in relation to the review’s recommendations to be approved in March 2023,
with update on progress of the agreed actions to be received in 2023-2024.

Page 68

24



People Select Committee

Smarter Working in Stockton (Accommodation and Buildings) (Task & Finish) 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

This review was undertaken by a small Task and Finish Group of Committee Members who reviewed
the current arrangements within the context of the Smarter Working programme, and the future
needs of the Authority and workforce.

A part of the review, the group visited existing Council buildings
(Stirling House, Kingsway, Municipal Buildings, 16 Church Road,
Bayheath House) and spoke with members of staff. Visits to North
Tyneside Council, Thirteen Group and the Cleveland Police
Community Safety Hub also informed the review.

Having reviewed the options available, the Group believed the
best solution would be for the Council to move towards having a
single main building for its office accommodation needs, as current
arrangements were no longer suitable for modern workspace.
Reported to Cabinet: November 2019 Kingsway House

Impact...

e Focus group of over 80 staff, made up of all directorates across SBC, was set up.

e The Smarter Working in Stockton project leads communicate with this group regularly.

e There is an ongoing process of planning and providing appropriate alternative office
accommodation.

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (Reporting-In) 2019-2020 / 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

In 2019, the People Select Committee commenced work on a review of the Local Council Tax
Support Scheme. It was expected that any changes to the scheme would be introduced from April
2021. However, due to the impact of Covid 19, the Select Committee considered a report in October
2020 on the risks of forecasting, developing, and consulting on changes during the pandemic.

The Select Committee concluded that more time was
needed to understand the financial impact of
) ) Coronavirus on customers and their ability to pay a
How to pay your Council Tax bill .. . . . .
poyonine minimum contribution, the rise in caseload and any
e R R wider welfare reforms that may come through as part
of the government’s response to the pandemic.
s Reported to Cabinet: December 2020

}E%ﬁ%ﬂw{e& | crene ey counsi sz | vasinto iy couma

Heme o Dur gl + Caunei Tax

Impact...
e It was agreed that it would not be appropriate to make changes impacting on the financial
aspects of the scheme until more was known about the affordability of the current scheme

and any alternative proposals.
In the meantime, it was proposed that funds could be set aside to provide more targeted
support to those struggling to pay the minimum 20% contribution using section 13A of the
local government Finance Act.

25
Page 69


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att37519.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39593.pdf

Public Consultation 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

The aim of the review was to improve performance of the consultation activity itself and of all Council
activities that use the results of the consultations.

The review was well-timed following the town centre consultation and
Youth Viewpoint 7 this consultation was well received by the Committee. It was agreed
: that paper versions of consultation forms should be retained for future
large-scale consultations where appropriate. The recommendations
also incorporated the need to increase engagement with young
people and build on the work of Bright minds Big Futures (BMBF).

It was valuable to receive evidence from Ipsos MORI, Bluegrass
Research Limited and North Tyneside Council, to learn more about
private sector approaches to consultation and areas of good practice
in other Local Authorities. Reported to Cabinet: December 2020

o Work has continued to ensure all consultations are fully inclusive, including offering paper
consultation forms and public meetings for large-scale consultations.
The coverage in Stockton News, under the ‘Your Views Matter’ heading, remains a key a

focus to ensure high-quality engagement.

Consultations have continued to be shared on Council social media channels to help raise
the profile of the activity, as well as to encourage participation, show transparency and
ensure effective consultation.

Carbon Monoxide Awareness 2020-2021 / 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

This review was undertaken to provide a greater understanding of the work of Stockton-on-Tees
Borough Council and external organisations in raising awareness about carbon monoxide poisoning.

The review was enhanced by the attendance of Siockon T Soreugh Coun

representatives from several Housing Associations and the [ e s oo s oo o
North East Ambulance Service at evidence sessions. HOldING [+ e e e s i o i

the meetings remotely allowed for an increased number of NI

external contributors to provide information on best practice TIME TO GET

and answer Members’ questions. THIS CHECKED

The review's recommendations supported a continued
promotion of Carbon Monoxide poisoning awareness raising
through existing platforms. The Committee also
recommended that legislation should be extended to ensure
that Carbon Monoxide alarms are fitted in all properties,
including holiday homes, for gas and solid burning fuel
appliances. Reported to Cabinet: July 2021

26
Page 70


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39595.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att40853.pdf

Impact...

e Letters were sent to both local MPs and positive responses were received.

o Lord Greenhalgh, Minister of State for Building Safety and Fire, also responded that the
Government has consulted on proposals to extend building and housing regulations to

require the provision of carbon monoxide alarms to oil and gas heating installations and
to social housing.

Carbon Monoxide Awareness Week was promoted in the November 2021 Stockton News
and via social media channels.

Disability Inclusive Borough 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

This review explored how Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council could contribute to a more disability
inclusive borough the Committee were keen to understand hidden as well as physical disabilities.
This was a very wide review, and the Committee were acutely aware that the review was part of an
on-going journey to make our Borough disability inclusive.

Hearing directly from individuals and disability groups provided an
invaluable insight and highlighted that there was no room for complacency.
Contributors included Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council Officers, Bright

Vi) - Yok Minds Big Futures (BMBF), Dementia Friendly Stockton Project, Horizons
B 0, Specialist Academy Trust, Stockton Parent Carer Forum, Daisy Chain,
Helpake 3tockie ingh Strest Guide Dogs for the Blind, RNID and Middlesbrough Council.

more dementia friendly

The review has demonstrated that Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council is
committed to putting every person who needs support at the heart of all that
they do and providing appropriate support and services to employees and
residents across the Borough with disabilities. Reported to Cabinet:
January 2022

Impact...

e The recommendations support a continued promotion of good practice across the
Council and wider community, but also, awareness raising and improved communication
with disability groups.

Project group led by Children’s Services, with representatives from SBC Adults and

Health, are delivering a programme of work to engage with families and stakeholders to
co-produce and develop a vision to improve outcomes for children and young people with
disabilities, and their families, that prioritises early identification / promotes independence.
The outline design for the new civic hub includes a changing place facility and one will
be considered as part of the new improvements to Preston Park.

Local Government Pension Scheme (Task & Finish) 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

This task and finish review investigated the reasons why 15% of the Council’s workforce had chosen
not to be members of the Teesside Local Government Pension Scheme and to consider what steps
might be needed to address this.

As part of the review, staff were invited to complete an online survey. Feedback from this survey
provided a valuable insight and contribution. The Committee’s findings confirmed that affordability
27

Page 71


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att41988.doc
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42383.pdf

was the main barrier for employees not joining the Scheme. The staff survey also revealed a general
lack of understanding and a need for better information to be provided, in plain English.

Question responses: 320 (99.69%)

Are you a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme?

% Total % Answer Count

[ Yes 91.90% 92.19% 295
M No 7.79% 7.81% 25
| [No Response] 0.31% - 1
Total 100.00% 100.00% 321

Table .2

The review’s recommendations sought to raise awareness of the benefits of the Scheme and to help
employees to make better informed choices and improve take-up. Reported to Cabinet: March 2022

Impact...
Increased LGPS membership.
Increase in the number of employees accessing the AVC scheme.
It has been confirmed that Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council is the top performing
Authority across the whole country. This is based on the number of scheme plans as a
percentage of LGPS membership.

Tees Credit Union 2021-2022 / 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

The aim of this review was to consider the operation of the Credit Union since the merger with
Moneywise in 2017 to ensure that it is serving the needs of the people of the Borough and specifically
supporting the vulnerable who rely on it for the provision of loans, banking services and savings
accounts at reasonable rates.

The Select Committee concluded that the Credit Union provided local,
accessible, and flexible support and noted that since their merger with
Moneywise, their financial position had significantly improved with

increases in loans, savings and membership. The Credit Union is well Credt Union
thought of by its members and all customers are encouraged to save. 5 2

As well as the online service, the Credit Union maintains a valuable
high street presence which has excellent footfall. Reported to Cabinet:
July 2022

Impact...
e The recommendations and action plan focused on exploring further opportunities to

promote the Credit Union and strengthen partnership working with other financial providers
and sectors.
e |Initial progress update due to be presented to the People Select Committee in March 2023.

28
Page 72


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42996.pdf

Home Energy Efficiency and Green Jobs for the Future 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

The aim of the review was to understand what funding was available for home efficiency
improvements and whether this met the needs of Stockton residents. The review also examined the
work that was taking place across the Tees Valley to create a local workforce fit for the demands of
a green economy of the future.

How? Four high level objectives

Protect and enhance
the natural environment

Use all resources
efficiently and minimise
waste

Adapt to the impacts of
climate change

As part of global efforts to combat climate change, this review focussed on the improvement of home
energy efficiency and the development of local employment in green industries. Reported to
Cabinet: February 2023

Impact...

¢ The Committee’s recommendations centre on awareness raising of grants and alternative
fossil fuel-based systems along with writing to government to urge them to improve energy
efficiency standards on new housing developments.

The recommendations have also captured the Council’s continued commitment to deliver
its Environmental Sustainability and Carbon Reduction Strategy and ‘green jobs’
workshops and training at all levels, including entry level jobs.

Action Plan in relation to the review’s recommendations to be approved in March 2023,
with update on progress of the agreed actions to be received in 2023-2024.

29
Page 73


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44298.pdf

Place Select Committee

Area Transport Strategy 2019-2020
(click here for full report)

The Area Transport Strategy (ATS) scheme provides the community with an opportunity to influence
where the Council targets its limited funding on improving the highway. Whilst the Committee
endorsed this fundamental principal of engaging with the public, the evidence received demonstrated
a number of challenges and frustrations with the existing scheme. A stakeholder survey was also
issued as part of the evidence-gathering process.

The Committee recognised that the Community Participation Budget (CPB) process already enables
the public to identify potential solutions to issues across the Borough, and provides a quicker
response to community-originated suggestions than the ATS presently allows.

Therefore, the Commitee recommend that the existing ATS scheme ceases at the end of the current
financial year, with the yearly ATS funding allocation to be transferred to the CPB on a Ward-by-
Ward basis determined by population per Ward. Reported to Cabinet: January 2020

Impact...
e The Ward Transport Budget (WTB) guidance document

Ward Transport Budget

was circulated to all Ward Councillors on the launch of Guidance
this budget in July 2020.

The WTB funding from the Local Transport Plan (LTP)

has been transferred into a specific budget account,

separate to the Community Participation Budget (CPB).

Business Support and Engagement 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

This review was initiated to examine the Council’s overall business support / engagement role, how
this was utilised and viewed externally, and whether the necessary resources were in place to satisfy
existing and future demand. Of further consideration was the key interface with the Tees Valley
Combined Authority (TVCA), both in terms of their business support activity and the funding streams
that they either manage or can access.

The Committee received evidence from representatives of the Council’s
Business and Enterprise Team, as well as from a range of wider
business support partners including the Tees Valley Combined
Authority, the North East England Chamber of Commerce / Department
for International Trade, and Teesside University. To gain insight into the
impact of the Council’'s support offer, the Committee also received
contributions from local businesses, though the intended visits to the
Fountain Shopping Mall, Drake the Bookshop and Fusion Hive were
unable to take place due to COVID-19 restrictions. Reported to Cabinet:
December 2020

30


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att37948.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39604.pdf

Impact...
e The ‘Invest in Stockton-on-Tees’ website has been launched which includes a feature for

current and prospective business owners to search for available property and land.
e The Inclusive Growth Strategy has also been completed.

Planters in Residential Streets (Task & Finish) 2020-2021
(click here for full report)

This review provided an opportunity to evaluate the current condition of planters across the Borough
to determine whether they should be retained, removed, or maintained. Contributions from Council
Officers, Parkfield Resident’'s Association, Cultivate Tees Valley, and Catalyst highlighted the
importance of planning and coordinating a sustainable community project and obtaining funding.

A key finding was that it would be beneficial to maintain the planters through sustainable community
planter projects. The recommendations reflected this view and invited groups, residents, local
businesses and Town and Parish Councils to get involved in the future maintenance of planters. The
group also recognised that residents should be consulted informally to gather their views on the
proposed options for planters in their wards. Reported to Cabinet: January 2021

Impact...

e £50,000 was secured from the Queens Platinum Jubilee grant by the Community
Partnerships, Cultivate and Sprouts. Part of this grant was to work with residents and
businesses on 70 planters across the borough and linked to the Edible Stockton
initiative and the Stockton-on-Tees Food Power Network. It is intended that ongoing
support will be provided through the Community Partnerships to identify other avenues
of funding and options to build on the successes of the project to look at other planters
and work to support other residents living in these areas. Ingleby Barwick Town Council
have also provided funding towards two planters in Ingleby Barwick.

I (.
e —— =

\f

T e T D SR e S g

Wren Street (Before) Wren Street (After)

Burial Provision 2020-2021 / 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

This review provided Members with the opportunity to review the current levels of burial provision
within the Borough of Stockton-on-Tees. Members were asked to determine if there was sufficient
capacity to allow the Council to continue to provide the appropriate choice to residents. The
recommendations reflected the need for a new burial site or sites, primarily in the central or western
areas of the Borough. Consideration was given to both the increasing size of the Borough and the
addition of the new crematorium. Reported to Cabinet: May 2021

31
Page 75


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att39786.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att40517.pdf

Impact...
A review of Council owned land has been completed and it was identified that there were
no suitable options and that it was a necessity to consider private land.
A subsequent review of private land has been undertaken and a handful of potentially

suitable options were identified and are being further investigated.
In addition, several discussions have occurred with Town and Parish Councils on burial
requirements and advice has been offered.

Highways Asset Management (including Potholes and Flooding) 2021-2022
(click here for full report)

The aim of this review was to evaluate the opportunities for maintaining the
Highways Infrastructure Asset as efficiently as possible, both now and in the
Mandale Road y . . . . . . . .
Bridge kmprovement future. This review also considered the impact of increasing demands, financial
Works pressures, and climate change issues.

The review uncovered that the existing budget is not sufficient to manage the
Highways Infrastructure Asset at a steady state. Therefore, the Council are
currently managing a deterioration of the asset, utilising the principals of asset
management. Reported to Cabinet: January 2022

Impact...

¢ In addition to using recycled rubber in materials, the Council have now moved to the use
of warm asphalt on the majority of sites and over the course of the 2022-2023 financial
year this has resulted in a saving of 10.2t of CO2 as compared to the use of traditional
surfacing materials which is the equivalent of 7 cars off the road.
The Leader of the Council wrote to both local MPs in September 2021. Subsequent to
the letter, the Tees Valley Combined Authority and Stockton as the local highway
authority was one of the Mayoral Combined Authorities that moved from the traditional
one year highway capital funding mechanism to a five year settlement plan via the City
Region Sustainable Transport Settlement. This surety of funding over a longer period will
allow for better planning and co-ordinating of works. It will also allow for larger schemes
to be programmed as funding profiles can be adjusted within the 5-year funding period.

Residents Parking Zones 2021-2022 / 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

This latest parking-related scrutiny topic was proposed with a view to informing
an overdue revision of the existing ‘high-level’ Council policy on Residents
Parking Zones, something which had not been reviewed since 2004. It was
seen as an opportunity to examine the eligibility criteria for such a zone, the
pros and cons associated with their implementation, and the experiences and
approaches of other Local Authorities.

Following engagement with key Council officers, local business groups, and SBC Ward Councillors,
the Committee’s recommendations were intended to provide a framework for strengthening
awareness around what Residents Parking Zones can and cannot achieve, the process following a
request for one, and the key elements within the determination and, potentially, implementation of a
scheme. Reported to Cabinet: July 2022

32
Page 76


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att41985.pdf
http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att42992.pdf

Impact...
e Itis hoped that, through this piece of work, clarity around both the benefits and challenges
of Residents Parking Zones will help manage public expectations and also assist the

Council in terms of administration, maintenance and enforcement requirements.
e An initial progress update is due to be presented to the Committee in March 2023.

Planning (Development Management) and Adoption of Open Space 2022-2023
(click here for full report)

The aim of the review was to examine the work of Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council’s (SBC)
Planning Service, namely pre-application advice, the effectiveness of the Council’s planning support
service (resources / performance) and planning enforcement. In addition, the review focussed on
the issues surrounding the maintenance and adoption of open space land on new residential
developments.

The review included site visits to five residential
developments across the Borough to view the differences
and similarities between privately maintained and SBC
maintained open spaces. The visits provided Members with
the opportunity to express some of their concerns (and
residents’ concerns) over the variances in maintenance
levels. Reported to Cabinet: February 2023

Impact...

e This review has provided the Committee with the opportunity to highlight the need for a
greater degree of transparency and accountability regarding the maintenance of open
spaces and any changes to charges passed on to residents for this service.

It has also been recognised that the current pre-application process should be re-
evaluated and options for charging for pre-application advice should be explored.

Action Plan in relation to the review’s recommendations to be approved in March 2023,
with update on progress of the agreed actions to be received in 2023-2024.

33
Page 77


http://www.egenda.stockton.gov.uk/aksstockton/images/att44302.pdf

Quality Assurance

Other Scrutiny Work

Historically, and in more recent times, there have been several national serious failures of care in
health, adult social care, and children’s services. It remains vital that Councils respond to this and
ensure that there are local mechanisms for effective oversight of the quality and safety of services
provided to their residents.

As part of a wider ‘web of accountability’, scrutiny committees have a role to play in highlighting
concerns, monitoring high-level performance, and being assured that commissioners, providers, and
inspectors are performing their roles. This relates to external providers as well as contributing
towards the increased expectation that Councils ensure rigorous internal review and challenge.

The Children and Young People Select Committee receive regular performance reports in respect
of children’s services. The Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee receive a range of other
reports and updates are provided as part of the enhanced performance management arrangements
—these include Annual Reports from the Teeswide Safeguarding Adults Board (TSAB), Care Quality
Commission (CQC), NHS Trusts, Healthwatch Stockton-on-Tees, and quarterly round-ups of
published CQC and PAMMS inspection reports.

To complement this work and improve their understanding of the issues, Members on Adult Social
Care and Health, and Children and Young People, Select Committees have previously undertaken
site visits to frontline services on arolling programme. Due to the emergence of COVID-19 in the
early part of this four-year Council term, such visits were suspended due to social distancing
guidance — it is, however, envisaged that a programme of visits will re-start when the 2023-2027

term begins.
OVGFVI eW Rep 0 rtS Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee
Overview Meeting 2022
P . . . 15 February 2022
Recognising the overview role of the scrutiny function, Aduits and Health
annual Overview Meetings provide Members with a
S u m m ary Of al I the CO u n CI I d I re Cto rates an d th e" r\cn::::s are reminded of the Council’s Vision that supports decision-making:
associated services related to the theme of each Select S —
. + This means the Borough will be a place where:
Committee. 2 peol el ol and ol omrtes
o People live healthy lives
A place that is clean, vmr.anl and attractive
e Adults and Health T e pisces to mena st
. , . ° Clean and green spaces
° Ch||d ren S SerVICGS o Rich cultural experiences
. A place with a thriving economy where everyone has opportunities to succeed
e Corporate Services * TS ear al 10 oo il v
. . . o Improved education and skills development
e Community Services, Environment and Culture < Jobaestonan s empoymen
[ F|nance’ Development and Regenera‘“on ;:‘niwﬁ;?,c;lﬂggwyse :;dp;r‘;ugmm::urr‘\’g sure this is achieved by being a Council that is
« This means that we will make sure that we provide:
o Financial sustainability and value for money
. . . . . o Dedicated and resourceful employees
This provides the opportunity to question Cabinet Members . Svonglesers and gamance
and senior officers on their performance, and understand Portormancs Roporing
the challenges and issues arising ahead of the next year’s Sy Commite Foose st e
p rog ram m e . hitp:/Awww .egenda. Stockton.gov. 1.pl7cmte=SCR

Monitoring

It is crucial to ensure that once recommendations have been accepted by the relevant organisation
(most often the Council's Cabinet), Select Committees have the opportunity to monitor their
implementation. At Stockton-on-Tees, this happens through the development of an Action Plan
which is then agreed by the relevant Select Committee.

34
Page 78



This is followed by Progress Updates on outstanding recommendations, the first of which is usually
presented around 12 months after the Action Plan has been approved (though can be requested
earlier). Further progress updates are provided (as deemed necessary by the relevant Select
Committee) until all actions can be signed-off as fully achieved.

Training and Development

Following the 2019 elections, the Member Induction Programme incorporated a dedicated scrutiny
training session for each Select Committee, which included bespoke information relevant to their
individual themes. Facilitated by the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) (now known as the Centre
for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS)), a dedicated training session for senior Council officers was
also held to highlight the role and benefits of the scrutiny process.

A similar programme is being designed for all Members after the 2023 elections, and this will include
the foundations of a scrutiny review for each Committee, in addition to dedicated questioning and
challenge training, and guidance for Committee Chairs.

Our approach to scrutiny enables us to take a collaborative approach within the Council. This is
extended to close working with colleagues across the Tees Valley and the North East as a whole.
Members have the opportunity to attend the Regional Scrutiny Networks, regional and national
conferences, and events hosted by external organisations such as Quality Account Stakeholder
events hosted by NHS Trusts. CfGS training courses (often held remotely) are periodically
advertised and available to Members.

Profile of the Scrutiny Function

The Council’s scrutiny function continues to receive a wide profile, principally due to regular
attendance at Committees from the local media (sometimes leading to even higher-profile coverage,
as seen below). This has generated substantial interest in the topics under consideration and the
role of Councillors in representing their residents.

EE : Signin A Home  sFiews sport  4¥ Weather I3 iPlayer UbwNEWS  YourArea v CostofLivingAdvice Ukraine  Politics Royal World Climate Health  Entertainment  Weather

NEWS

Home | Cost of Living | War in Ukraine | Coronavirus | Climate | UK | World | Business | Politics | Tech Fire chief says bonfires have cost Stockton

Enslapct| Locs{Nevs [ Regiops| Toes £10m in the past five years amid rise in
nuisance fires

Civil rights group opposes Stockton
aggressive begging ban plan TYNETEES | FIRE | STOCKTON | ( Wednosday 8 Juno 2022 at 9:14am

Figur res in 2021 compared to 2020.
Credit: ITV News Tyne Tees

A fire chief has warned bonfires have cost Stockton £10m in the past five years amid a rise in nuisance blazes.

Acivil rights group is opposing a plan to tackle "aggressive begging".

Stockton councillors are taking a closer look at plans to tackle bonfires on public land over fears some are
getting out of hand on Hardwick and in parts of the town centre.

Stockton Council is considering introducing a Public Space Protection Order
(PSPO) in the town centre which could see people fined for begging,

Internally, the Scrutiny Team have been involved in several Democratic Services awareness-raising
sessions for various Council directorates / departments which has further highlight the role and
importance of the scrutiny function amongst Council officers.

35
Page 79



Regional Scrutiny

Joint Health Scrutiny Committees

From a broader perspective, Councillors from Local Authorities across the region scrutinise various
health and social care matters via joint committees.

The Tees Valley Joint Health Scrutiny Committee, chaired and supported by the five involved
Councils (Darlington, Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland, and Stockton-on-Tees) on
an annual rotational basis, plays an important role in holding health and care providers to account
and responding to proposals for change. Consideration of health service issues frequently means
that local Councillors are reflecting the concern of their residents — an important aspect of scrutiny’s
role.

The Joint Committee has monitored multiple aspects of activity across the Tees Valley, including:

e Provider responses to Care Quality Commission (CQC) reports

iQ:wﬂg{ EHARTLEPOOL Middlesbrough .
— ¢ North East Ambulance Service (NEAS) performance updates

& BOROUGH COUNCIL

@ skt o e Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV)
Tees Valley Joint Health Scrutiny Committee Q U aI Ity ACCO U ntS
e Respite / short-breaks provision updates

Time: 10.00 am

A Chambe oo i on, ViR e Roseberry Park remedial works updates (following the Joint

Counci
Hartlepool 1524 8AY

Committee’s task and finish work in 2018-2019)

Local COVID-19 response (NHS / Public Health)

Teesside Rehabilitation Services development

West Lane Hospital updates (including visit to re-branded site)
Tees Suicide Prevention Plan

Community Mental Health Transformation Programme

Breast Diagnostic Services

Urgent and Emergency Care Access

Integrated Care System (ICS) developments

Stockton-on-Tees will be responsible for chairing and supporting the Joint Committee for the 2023-
2024 municipal year.

On a wider level, the North East Regional Health Committee also exists to, where appropriate,
consider issues impacting upon a larger geographical area. The Committee, however, has not been
convened during this reporting period.

Cleveland Police and Crime Panel

Until late-2021, we continued to support the Cleveland Police and Crime Panel on behalf of the four
Boroughs covered by Cleveland Police (from 2022, support of the Panel was transferred to Redcar
and Cleveland Borough Council). The Panel’s role is to:

Scrutinise the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
Review the Police precept

Contribute to the development of the Police and Crime Plan
Considering proposed appointments by the PCC

Carry-out investigations

VVVYVYYV

36
Page 80



Since its inception, the Panel has established a Budget Strategy Task and Finish Group. This
ensures that each year the Panel’s consideration of the PCC precept proposal is informed by more
in-depth consideration of the wider budget situation in advance of the formal meeting to agree the
precept.

Ahead of the 2021-2022 budget setting process, the Task and Finish Group met three times to
receive information about the Police and Crime Commissioner’s overall budget strategy for the
forthcoming financial year. With contributions from the Acting PCC and Chief Finance Officer from
the Office of the PCC, discussion took place about funding and planning assumptions, total funding
projections, funding pressures, and the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

In view of the information provided and the discussion that
subsequently followed, a majority of the Group recommended that
the proposal of the Police and Crime Commissioner to set the
Band D Police Element of the Council Tax within Cleveland for
2021-2022 at £265.73 (an increase of £5.19, or 1.99%, over the Seirg e gl oo Wi
2020-2021 level) should be endorsed.

//‘
8

a
¢ THE CLEVELAND POLICE
AND CRIME PANEL

2N

\\\\ll

\g

The Group felt that Cleveland Police had made very good progress Review of the

under the current Chief Constable and were keen to support the Overall Budget Strategy
Force in meeting demand, as well as helping to ensure that service (Task and Finisn Group)

improvements were maintained and further strengthened.
However, concerns remained as to the allocation of resources
across the whole of Cleveland, in particular Hartlepool and East
Cleveland. The Group strongly urged the Force to ensure, as far
as possible, that any additional funding made available through a Final Report
precept rise benefitted all four Local Authority areas, and that the January 2021
public could see tangible evidence of a return on their investment.

At the conclusion of each municipal year, the Panel produces an Annual Report detailing highlights
of its activity during the previous 12-month period. Accessible via the PCC website
(https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/cleveland-police-and-crime-commissioner/office/police-and-
crime-panel/), the last version (2020-2021) published before Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council
took on the role of supporting the Panel included the following...

Role of the Police and Crime Panel

Panel Membership and Attendance at Meetings

The Panel’s Core Programme

Annual Report of the PCC

Police and Crime Plan — Strategic Programme 2020-2021
Panel Training

Review into the role of PCCs

Resignation of the PCC

Victim Care and Advice Service (VCAS)

National Police and Crime Panel Conference

Task and Finish Scrutiny

HMICFRS Integrated PEEL Assessment Report 2019 update
Heroin Assisted Treatment (HAT) Programme — Evaluation Feedback
Complaints

Cleveland

Annual Report 2020/2021

37

Page 81


https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/cleveland-police-and-crime-commissioner/office/police-and-crime-panel/
https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/cleveland-police-and-crime-commissioner/office/police-and-crime-panel/

Regional Joint Member / Officer Scrutiny Network

We continue to take part in the North East Joint Member / Officer Scrutiny Network which allows
Councillors from across the region to share their work. The network also benefits from the input of
guest speakers who provide their expertise and insight on important topics —this has included regular
contributions from the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) and attendance from
representatives of the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC).

At the most recent network meeting in February 2023, we presented the key findings and
recommendations from the Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee’s recently completed
review of Care at Home. During subsequent discussions, the network Chair encouraged all Local
Authorities to use the Committee’s work to ‘temperature-check’ their own local Care at Home
markets.

38
Page 82



Overview and Scrutiny Team

The Scrutiny Team is based at Municipal Buildings in Stockton and is part of the Council’s Corporate
Services directorate.

Jonathan Nertney

Head of Democratic Services
01642 526312
jonathan.nertney@stockton.gov.uk

SBC Statutory Scrutiny Officer

Judy Trainer

Democratic Services Manager
01642 528158
judy.trainer@stockton.gov.uk

Supports:
e Executive Scrutiny Committee
e Children and Young People Select Committee

Gary Woods

Senior Scrutiny Officer

01642 526187
gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk

Supports:
e Adult Social Care and Health Select Committee
e Crime and Disorder Select Committee

Rebecca Saunders-Thompson

Senior Scrutiny Officer

01642 528957
rebecca.saunders-thompson@stockton.gov.uk

Supports:
o People Select Committee
e Place Select Committee

Rachel Harrison

Scrutiny Support Officer

01642 524863
rachel.harrison@stockton.gov.uk

For general enquiries, please contact the Scrutiny Team on 01642 528158 or at
scrutiny@stockton.qov.uk. Further information can be found by visiting our website
www.stockton.gov.uk/scrutiny.

39
Page 83


mailto:jonathan.nertney@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:judy.trainer@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:rebecca.saunders-thompson@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.harrison@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@stockton.gov.uk
http://www.stockton.gov.uk/scrutiny

Appendix 1: SBC Scrutiny 2019-2020

suonefnsasu no Aues .
UE|d SLULT) pue

200 P U0 WRLALOT -

ydaoaud

201|0d ) MRy

JRUDISSILLUIOT

BT pUB 304

A FSILUNNES

SN LHEeH HIqn4
PUE YNPY JO MIIAISAD
sbunes awoy auea
a0 jo Buuchuop -

S3TAIE AINOE

jo uonenByucoas

pue sabueyo aoinas
yyeay euoiiay -

g]SnJ| |epdsoy

[e20] Jo Ayjenb

PUE S0UBLLLICHSY
LjiyjeaH uo Wq._u_uu_

AunnIos pue MajuSAo
u ped aye) ued

v

JauBd Swi pue wu_—n_n_
pueRaa|] Ul poddns apy
L)) pue :
3J1]0d U0 Sn204 :

: S@ang [ERuapisay W siaueld pus wawabebuz pue poddng
| SSBUISNE UMHEYNSUO] Jqnd ‘SWBLps Hoddng XB) Iauno) (B30T ‘SasioH
: pazmig-Al4 ‘suuoyun jooyas sbueyasig EpdsoH aaoa Y| LEDT0E

) pat@|dwnD aq [|im pue 0Z-6L0Z Bupnp uebaq smauval B0 JO JaquInU Y «

"DZOT, ABTIUET U) Mapal u|

. -Burpedas pag-saon ve Jo Led se ADalENS uonoadsy) pue pageuiluIBIu0D
5 LRIp 811 PaUapSu0D Sa]IIULIDY 108[3S 3084 aUl 'UDHIpDE U] -

: Way) 0] uado aue 18yl
 sapunuoddo syl PUBISIBPUN PUE SS0I0UD PAULLICIU e o] sjdoad Bunod
PUB UBUpIY Sd)ay 0S8 Y2ym WonBInps wWaoly sa1el Inc-doup sanpay pue
WAUIUIBLIE LUBS9-J[@5 2SERUIU) O] JapU0 Ul awnueibod siseued anpsod
¢ pue nyBuuBsw B BUIAEY 0 SOUBLIOCL) BU] 1B PIM00| — UO|SIAOI 518818

SAWOH JNo
un Apenk ancuduy) 0] SEPIOUSHELS JApIM DUE AJLCLIMY (B0 #4] ‘SUO0H
: BUED BYL AQ USHELIBPUN 3G PINOD SSIALIE TBUM Paunuep| pue ‘siesmne
I [BUCTIEU puB 583 a1 S sBunes 200 Jo [pre| awes syl Buvap e 10U aism

» L sAaWoH aeg syYBnoog syl Ays pauluEys — apdoad Jap|0 JOj SMUOH aue

suonesuefg EwapE 2SS« Sanss) pue spuay) Buiswg

610z Anr un uoneioysas aqojs) Buobuo

- SYISIA, 301AISS UNJUCL

auy Buipiefial uHeo, B palapisuo] . adeld
(4 LW} UB|d [EEUBLIY LIS | LUMIP3Y :
m pUE UE|d ounog jo wbisieag - E
¢ awweiboud oM AUNMISS |[EJan0 Y] S3BUIPIO-07) : 00
a)iwwoy) h:_u_._._ 125 aAln UNHN

Bujujewsy sy pue
@.q jauiqe] uo e h En____u__._zauﬂm SABL 3/,

A LL40300LLLAALAS

A LU

ooyas @yl Jo A aut viyim Bupped waqoud Bujpuels
-Bun) o1 uopER W) PANWIGNS Loy Jo) (B0 Jopsuncg & paiebnsaa) —

|oeyos fiewiiy asnoyapyp puncue Buppey (eBaj)) pue aajongsqo -

‘(Ao Jo g pabe asoyl wo snooy JenoUed B yum)

SlUBpISa) Sge@UNA JO DuEgEm pue Alajes ayl ajowoud day o) papaau
SEM LoddNS auow JSUEUmM aU(LLLSIEE O] SUNNUISELU| AJUNLnuwcd (B

1E pao0| — BwoH 18 BUIAT SIUSPISaY JAP|0 B|GRIBUINA JO UORIAN0YY -

“s5a00ud an1dae puB Waoe ue Buag spym 'sausn|u) Jo paes sepdoudde
Bl aaey o] 2)|gnd aay) pamo)e pue ‘swsn|ou) ‘ssodind 1oy 11y 5eM 10

Ys||qELse o) swayss 5y Bunsxe syl pauojde - Abaens podsuel) eauy -
« “SUDIS|sap DuuoissILWoD aunmny pue Ae(eas asngy Sisawog Byl Luoyul

0] SUD[IUSAIBIUL JO SSRUBAIISLS S PUEB USIP{YD U0 SSNGE J)1SalWop

10 1920LL 4] PAUILEXD — UaJp[iYD Uo joRdwy S pUB asngy Jnsawog -

L

‘uasivoud aoedsyiom aminy Ja) suodo se |jam se 'sbuping
[Runog ual Bunspa ayl wyis UOIEDOWILLICIIE 32140 Jo AIjIge1NS a1l

. PAE5ESEE — sBUIpiINg F UONEPOWILWOIDY — UOIYI0NS Ul Burgiop Japews

SM3IAY 2DIAIRS

« SMANTY SOUBLLLOMEY . SM3IN3Y 30IES

lapiosig ajdoad bunog, eay pue ase)
puesliL)  pueulplyy  [EROSYNpY

HEGIO

sespjwwog IJ1S

S

. op fayy

1eyM

_UUH...—U.M_U.__“_U._ S4B SLUIU0D

angnd Aue jeu) pue waly) Bussaap Joy Junoaoe o} pRy e A3L) JBY) SINSUS SS3ILLILLICT

AUruog au) pue ‘sanuoud Lo SPIDSp PUB SUOISIDOP S4B JLIGED) S]I0Unoy) au |
s2duejeg pue sy¥2ayd
‘suonesiuetic sauypo pue

S301AJ2E [IIUN0] KPUNLWILWOD 2y} ‘sjdoad [e2o0) ypm Burjom sio|pmuncy sawoaul } ajdoad |220| Jo SpasU aly) 133w saijod pUB S30IAaS
ayy 1ey; Burpayo saapuwiwog Aunniag sjisuncy aug) ybnouy saowaas Ayjenb ybiy aneoas 3jdoad |e20) 18y amsua o) sdjiy Augnosg
SAUINIoS pue MalAIaAo S1 JeYyMm

02-6L0Z ybnoiog 19119q e o) abudjjey) Aunniosg

[1ouno?) ybnoiog 93 -Uuo-uopjo0ls

40

Page 84



SBC Scrutiny 2020-2021

Appendix 2

suonebnsasul ino Lueny
ue|d sWwL) pue

301|0d =241 U0 lUsLWo)
1daoaud

301|0d 3Y1 MY
J3UOISSILLILWIOD

3wl pue 3919d

3U1 3SIULNIDS

‘]auBd W) pue 321j0d

pue|ans|) syl woddns s

awl) pue
321jod uo shoo4

S30IAIBS YlesH Jljqnd
pUB JNpY JO M3IAISAQ
sBunel awoy al1ea
200 Jo Bulonuop
S301AJSS B1NIE

Jo uonesnbyuodal
pue sabueyo s01n3s
yyesy |euoibay
sisni] |eudsoy

|eoo| Jo fujenb

pUE 3oUBLICHSd

Y1jeaH uo snood |

Aunnios pue MalAISAO
ul ped sxe) ued

TN Y ITYY!
Gl LD L L

N

@.w Bujuiewsal ayy pue

¢ suonesiuebliQ [ewslxg 3SIUNNIOS -

m awweiboid yiom AUlnias ||BI3AC SYL SS1BUIPIO-0D -

"UOISIADI] [BLING PUE SSaUAIEMY

apmxouoy uogied ‘([euosiad) sseusiemy pneld ‘133 sivaesT aied ‘(atuoy umo
s [enpiapul ue 0} abieyosip — g aseyd) abieyosiqg [epdsoH snjonu ss3y) - 72
-LZ0g W1 pa1aduund aq ||Im pue |2-0z0z Buunp uefiaq smainal JsUIo [R1snes
Jpd-ogssene/sabewnuopooissye qnaobuoppois epusbosmm: day
JUSLUBAOAU] AYUNLULLICD JO

fyed-payy Bupjses Aq sy Jo sses| mau e uanb aq pinoo sisjueld Jsysym

puE 'slaans [eRuspisad Ul sisued Buinowd Jo Buueew Guiuielal oy
suondo syl psiebnsanul (ysiuld % )jsel ) s19ans [enuSpIsay Ul SISIUeld
Jpd-poossne/sabewn/uopiooissye Hnrobi-uoppols-epusbammm,):duy
‘PUBLLSP 2Injny

pue Bunsixe Asnes ol soepd Ul U3 S30UN0s3. JUBSS305U SY) JaYlaym pue
‘fjlewssixa pamain pue pasijiin sem iyl moy 'sjol Juswisbebus ¢ yoddns
SS3UISN( [[EJSA0 S I0UNOY 313 passasse Juawabebug pue poddng ssausng
Jpd-geseene/sabew/uoppoissiennaob-uoppoys-epusbiammm//:dyy
“SUOREYNSUCD 343 JO

S)NsaJ 341 35N JeY] SIARDE [IDUNY || JO pue Y35y AUAILDE UONEYNSUOD 341
10 souewopad sup ‘Bunosdiul oy m3Ia B UM ‘PSIENEAS ‘UOREYNSUOD JIjqng

1pd 65 6£1E/5abELUL U0 D01SSHE N A0E UoPRoYs EpUsEa Mam ) dyy
-onuspued 61-0IA00 a3 Buunp sebueys uo Bulynsuos

pue Buidojenap ‘BulisE3I0) JO SHSU SU} P2ISPISUOD PUE 3WsYos poddng xe|
[PUNGY (B30 B3 J& UDISIASL 3U) pasojdxs BweYyos Yoddns xel rounod [eao
1pd 064 6£11E/5abELU U0 D01sSHE N A0E UoPPoYs EpUsEa MM dyy

“fonjod sesioy pszesB-Ay [eLwLoy) € Jo UOESID U} LLIOJUI O} JSPIo Ul

sonpoeud siyy Suipsebas ybnolog sup SSOI0E SUISOUOD JO JUSIXE SU) PEUIUSPI pue
‘PUE] [IDUNSO-UCU PUB IIUNOD Ylog uo sasioy pazesb-A|) Joj ssnijgisuodsal pue
s3|0! suonesiuefio JuensE 1BUI0 PUE S J1Iounog sUYL paqoid [sasioH pazelg-Al4
jpd-zooeene/sebewn/uoppolssye Hn nob uoppooysepusbammm,:dpy

"§1800 wuoyun 323w o} BunGBnns saiwe) soy 3jge)eAs

voddns 2yl pSUILIEXS PUB '3|JBPICLE PUB 3|qISSI008 218M 533 | -UC-UOIHo0IS

Ul s3Ijod WIoHUN (00425 J2Uisym paleBinsaaul ;swuopun [0oyas Jo 150D
jpd-pogeene/sebewn/uoppolssye Hnnob-uoppooysepusbammm,:dny

-aBuns §1-QINQD pucoss peledidiue ue Jo pesye

Buiuiez| |equalod Aue pue 'sawoy 2ueo o} 3bieyosip puncue ssaoccud ay) ‘souepinb
|BUOREU SUL UO SNJ0J B YUM ‘S3LUCL 3J80 [220] o) sbieyasip |eudsoy uo siuspued
&1-QIN0D 0Z0T U Jo 1oedw 2y pauiuexs (| aseyd) abreyasiq [epdsoH

A L E E E L e R R A L K4 R LR R R LR R E LR R R LR R4 R LR R R R K LR R R LR R R L K4 R LR R R LA R E LR AR LR R4 R LR R K R4 K LR R R LR R R L K4 R LR R R LA R LR AR LK R4 R LR R LR R4 R LR AR LR AR RS EEEELE m;w_bmm >=_H=|—om

sanss| pue spuai] BuiBISWT - sUsIA, 30USS SUIRUCI - SMBIASY SOUBULIOHSd - SMAIASY 20IA3S - op AsU11eum
6 L-JIAQD wol) A15A0031 pue : 1spiosiq a|doad Bunop UieaH pue ale)
01 85U0dSa] §19UNCY 3] PRIBPISUOY  « | 828]d s|doad PuEswWLY)  PUBURIP|IYD  [BI90S }NPY

(d41L) Ue[d [e1ouBUl4 WIS ] WnIpa|y :
pue uB|d I2unog Jo WBISIsAQ -

ssnwwo) Aunniog aAnnoaxy |

mmmt_EEoo Em_mm

Buiqe uo ale h Slojjiounod om ahey s\

‘pajuasaidal 218 SUIZ0UCD DI _n_.a _,Em 18U pue Waty m::oz I|2p 10} 1UNOJ3JE 0} pjay 21e _55 12y
2InNsua saaniwwWog AUnios 2yl pue ‘sanuoud Uo 3pIoap pue SUOISIDAP 2B 12UIge] S[1ouUnoy ay |

[ oo 00 saduejeg pue s)}o3yd

"suoliesiueblo Jaylo pue $301M3S (10UN0Y fAuunwiwod 3y 's|doad [eoo) yum Bupiiom siojjiounod sanoul 1 sjdoad [2a0] Jo spasu aUL 183w saialjod
pue $a21ASS 3UL 12Ul Bunoayd ssa1uwiwog AUnnios §)1Iounod syl ybnouy ssainias Ayenb ybiy anadsl sjdoad [eoo| 18yl aunsus o sdjay Aunnios

Aunnios pue malalano si 1eym

LZ-020¢Z ybnoiog 1onnaq e 1o} abuajeys Aunnios

[1ouno) ybnolog se99] -uo-uopy201s

41

Page 85



2021-2022

iny

SBC Scrut

Appendix 3

voday [BNUUY S3uUEd : . ; .aU:ON.U:_u—-w& Sjuapisay pue uolun §pasy 3pd'926 1 yie/sabewi/uopy; je/n Ao uoppooys-epuabammm//duy
d pue a1e i s3] ‘pue] a1jqnd uo saiyuog ‘Auanod pjiyo ‘synpy 1oy saniunpioddo Aeq a4j0Aul ‘20e|d Ul 319Mm
3y} adnpoud pue a1e|jo9 I 8sayl- £2-2Z0Z Ul pa1e|dwiod aq ||Im pue ZZ-1Z0zZ buunp uebag smainsl JaYl0 [BISASS swsiueyosw Juawabebus aanoayye pue ajeudosdde jey) ainsus o) siapjoyayels
ue|d swiQ pue 3 Jpd 586 L yiie/sabewi/uopjooissyenn aob-uopjooys-epuaba-mmmy//dny A3 J3y10 pue syuBpIsal [BO0] 'S10]|1DUNOY PIEA |ed0] ‘Burdljod pooyinoqybiau
301j0d 343 U0 JUBLULLIOD i ‘sanss| abueyo a1ew|o U39M13q S3 ] -UO-UOP{O01S Ul SUOREDIUNWIWIOD pue Hulieys-uojieusoju; uo
; ¢ pue'sainssald [eIouBUl ‘SPUBLUSP BUISEIOUI JO IX2ILOD BY1 UIYIIM 19S ‘(21MmNg B3 Ul pue pasnooj :(ysiuld 3 se]) $33] -U0-UOPI0IS Ul SUOHEDIUNWIWIOY 3DI|0d -
J2UOISSILUWIOY WY m Apuaiino) ajqissod se Apuaioys se 13ssy aimonnseu| skemybiH ayy buiuieluew Joj Jpds L S0pNe/sabew/uopy je/n'Aob uopy puaba-mmm//:dny
PUE 30104 31 3SIUNNIOS  « : sanunyoddo ay) passasse (buipoold 8 s3joyiod "oul) Juawabeuey 1assy skemybiy .« ‘SwisIueyIaW
= e : Jpd- L L Sopne/sabewi/uopjoolssyeHnaob uopjoois epuabammm//:dny Buniodas pasinbai 3y} jo aieme apew 21am 011gnd 3y) Moy pue sased Jo buljpuey
‘[BUed 3w pue 39]|0d : ‘JauuBW a1 Ul sIapjouyes A3y Jo 3|01 a3 Buipn|oul ‘'saouayo pnely (jeuosiad) buniodas
pueaA3|) ayy papoddns : Ajdwi} B Ul paIaAI|ap SEM PUB JaW SBM PUBWAp 31NNy AUE 1eyl 3INSUs 0} $30IN0Sal 10 $s3001d 3y} puelsIapun 0} 1ybnos pue ‘parioddns pue paynuap| M WD
3M ZZ-1Z0Z 40 1s0W Jo4 ajeudoidde Jo uoneoo||e sy} paiapISUOD pue 'syuspisal 0} 3010yo aleudoidde ay) apiaoid SIU3 4O SWINDIA [BIO] YDIYM Ul SAEM 3L} paule}saose (Jeuosiad) ssaualemy pnely -
i 013|qeun aJam 11 1 |1oUN0Y 3y} uo Joeduwl ayy ‘Ybnolog ay3 UyIm 30eds BN JUSI0YINS 20p°0L80vNe/sabewi/uoppolssieHnaob uoppols epuabammm//:diy
UE_ho ﬂ:ﬂ . papiaoid [1ounog ayl ains bupjew jo souenodw syl pasiubooal (uoisiAold jeung - Sencl -3|doad
- $ 20p" 1e/sabeul/uopy {e/n"A0b-uOPO0)S BpUIB MMM//:dY UNOA 10} S3W00INO pue 3ouewIouad aaoidwil Jayuny 0} 3UOp aq O Papasau
9J1]0d U0 SNJ04 : e & ‘ybnoog aAIsnjoul b_“_\nmm_w_ 210w Ji pue ybnoua BUIOp SEM [IDUNOY Y3 JALIBYM PaIojdXa PUE SISABS] 318D J0)
° 2J0W B 01 3INQLIAUOD P|N0D [10UNCY 3yl Moy palojdxa :ybnosog aaisnpou) Aupgesiq - yoddns (133) buiuien Jo yuawhojdwa do;mu:uo passasse (133 sieAed|aley .
m 1pd-ggezpyne/sabewi/uoppolssye/n-aobuopy puaba-mmm//:dyt 1pd'ez5 1 pne/sab {e/n‘A0b uop0Is BpUIBa MMM/ /:dnY
SPOIAISS hieay{ Aldnd : )i SSappe 01 papaau aq 1ybiw sdas 1eym um_wu_m,m,_o pue mecom uoisuad EwER_\goM ‘papirosd ton_n:m w£ 40 10edwi 3y} ssasse 0} 3ouabl|j23ul pue elep
PUBJINPY JOMBIAIBAD | m [BD07 2pISS33] 3} JO SISQLUSW 3q O} J0U USSOYD PEY 32I030M S[19UN0D 343 Jo uoiiod jueAd|a) buisAjeue se jjam se ‘uebaq olwapued auyy ouls s1auped aled pue yyjeay
sbunel swoy ¢ eAymsuoseas ay) parebisanul ((ysiutg 3 )Sel) aWaYOS UOISUId JUIWUIBA0Y [B20T] - m:oﬂmba .nw.w_w ﬂuw MNMMOM W..M_w, _Mwow .ﬁwmpﬁw.w Mﬂ.ﬂﬂﬁﬁm%% Mﬂrﬂcm_:»_omxwaxsu_:_u
: " 1pd-g580p1e/Sabewi/uopjoolssye/Hn Acb uopjools epuaba-mmm//:dyi 5 UbY-RINN- -
152 D000 10 Buicrmiogy : isuodsas suonesiuebio _wc‘.wuxmvmm |Iom se mE._m__m_ jpd°2£80pNe/sabewi/uoppoissyeHNAch uoppoys epuaba mmm//:dny
S80IAISS I 00 Jouone|eisul ayy pue buiuosiod (0D) SPIXOUON UOGIED JO SSaualeme Buisies ul 3|0l Juauneas) [eydsoy buipsau usym paynuap! 3iam sia1ed
3inoe Jo uoneinbyucoal $,10UN0Y 3U1 JO BUIPUBISISPUN J3PIM & UIEH 0] PSWIE :SSIUIIEMY IPIXOUCH UOGIED - ;owmwmww_mww%ﬁmu_wﬁ_mwa_b.,m,mm_w\ﬂmm_ﬁm%ﬂ%&mh&omdﬂ %%_w %ﬁnﬂmﬁ%%ﬁ MF__%MMN
pue sabueyo soimies Jpd'gL Lzyne/sabewi/uoppoissye inaob :os_oo.wnw_.ﬁww hnu%...__uu £90] o1} §53001d 3BIEYISIP 3U) 16 PaY00) :(Z 5eYd) 9BIeYDSIA _r_.%o: .
teay euoibay : Bunsixe SSaIpPE 0} 2INSE3W B YONS JusWwa|dui 0} YSIM [1DUNOD 23U PINOYS Pamojios 3q
sisni] [endsoy (e00] Jo  : O} SP33U Yoiym Ss300:d 3} pue ‘YBnoIog 3} UIYHM OdSd & Buionpoul wioy sabusjieyo SM3IARY >=_u=._ow
4 pue sjyauaq [enusiod ay) palapisuod ((s0dSd) SIaPI0 UoiAN0Id saoeds algnd -

Aypcb psaooeliaging i PHESURES BOEA ANDROIES (000D KRPIDUNIRIC OB OBIM. st s R

yijeaH uo sndo4 : Japiosig a|doad bunop pjeaH pue aien
: : suonesiuebio pueaWwl)  puBUAIPIYD  [EOS YNpY
[BUISIXT 3SIUNNIOS -

SMB3IA3J 331}WILIOY 103[8S :
Pa)a|dLLOD WO SBLIELULINS SANNOSXS pasapisuoy « :  SONSS|puBSpuall buibiow3 A >
(d41W) veld feroueury SUSIAROARS PUIRUGLY. » ng
W3] WNIPSW pue ueld [1ouno) Jo 1ybisisng -« SMaIASY S0UBWLIOLR] S
awiwelboid xiom Aunnios [|BISA0 3y} S31BUIPI0-00 SMBIASY 30IAISS -
29RIWWOD AURNIOS 2ARNXT op Aay1 reym S321WWOY 193]9S

Aunnios pue MaIAJOAO Buiurewss ay} pue ‘pajuasaidal ale swizouod a1jgnd Aue 1eyy pue wayy buusaljsp Joj Junoooe o} pjay ale Asy1 1ey}
ul ped aye) ues mv y «.0:38 uo ae h Eo___o::ooom dABYDN|  2INSUS S3BNILWIOY AUNNIOS 3y} pue 'sanliolid Uo aploap pue SUOISIOaP e J3UIGED S[1UN0Y By L

Rt L LTI T T T YT T AT SNy e
o000 0O0 O "suonesiueblo Jayjo pue saoiAIas [1ouno) “Ajunwwiod ayy ‘ajdoad [eao| yum Bupyiom siojjiounog
sanjoAul }| ‘ajdoad [Boo| Jo Spaau ay) 193w saioljod pue sa0IAI3S 3 Jey) Bunjoayo saanIwwo

Aunnuog s j1ounod ays ybnouyy saoinias Ayjenb ybiy aaieoal ajdoad 200 jey) ainsua 0} sdjay Aunn.ios

{Aunnios pue MaIAIRAO SI Jeym

ZZ-120zZ ybnoiog 191194 e 10} abusjjeyn Aunniog

[1ouno?) ybnoiog $93] -U0-UOPJI01S

42

Page 86



2022-2023

iny

SBC Scrut

Appendix 4

(rz0z-£202)

LLLIZ} [ISUNDD) mau SU3 :

10 pesye s[eusiew Buen
Juoonpul Augruos pasedald . :
(sa0103s

uodn pajoeduu aney smalmal :
moy Bupnpul) zog6L02 ¢
poday wus | -jo-pud Augniog :
DUE M3IASAQD SUI DSONpoId -

Bujuue|q a4mng:
pue uonoa|joy

saluifa
uonoadsul mau Buipsefiau
10ienbas ay) BuiBuseyn .
siapinosd
3JED pUE UYE3Y [B20|
10y sBunes oo Buuonuow .
SIDINISS SIN0E JO
uoneinbyuosa pue sabueys
31038 yyesy [euoiBay .
S3JAISS BIED
pue sisnil [eudsoy 220
jo fyjenb pue souewiopad .

YijeaH uo snoo4 ;

SM31A3] 221 WIWIOY 193135
pa12|dwod Wol S3BLWWNS SAIINISXS PRJPISUD] -

W3] Wnipajy pue ue|d launo) jo wybisisag -
awwelbold yiom AUIINIOS ||2I3A0 3U) S21BUIDIO-0]) .

29n1Wwwo) Aunniog aAnNoaxy

6¥
AAARALALARLLLLLL
LTI L LI

Auninios pue mainiaA0
ul ped aye) ueo

Ipd Zoerrle/sabew/uoa01ssye, N Aob uopools epuaba mmm//-dy
“slusLdojanap [ENUSPISa)

M3U U0 pue| adeds usdo Jo uodope pUe 8JUEUSIUIEL 8y} BuIpunoLINS S8Nss|

3] uo pasna0) uay) ‘(Juawadtopua Buluueld pue (soueuuopad / S30IN0S3L) SIS AU}
10 SS3UANIL08A 3y} Foipe uoljeddde-aid £jaweu) 201Aas Buluueld D9S AU} JO YoM
3y} paulwexa :aseds uadg yo uondopy pue (Juswabeue uawdopaag) buuuey
Ipd-zeRziue/sabew/uopa01ssye, N Ach uoo0]s Epuabe mmm//duy

"sa[pJouINy [B307 JaU10 Jo saydeoidde

I pue sadusuadys 3ul pue ‘uonejuswa|dw 2yl yum p31BID0OSSE SU0D pue soud ay) ‘suoz

B 4ons 10} eusllD Aupgibi@ ayl paqold pue ‘sauoz Duiyled sjuspissy uo Lo1od [Iounogd
J2nal-ybiy, bunsixe auy) asimal o} Ayunpoddo ue papiaoid (sauoZ Gunjied sjuamsay
Ipd-ggsrziiE/sabew/uoyao1ssye, N ach uoo0)s Epuaba mmm//duy

"S@1el 3|QBUOSER)

1E S1UN022E sOUINES pUE sad1aas Burjueq “sUBO| 10 uoIsicold 2] 10) U uo A3l oYM
2|qelauina au) Buruoddns Ajeaioads sem uolun UPalD 28Ul )l passasse pue ‘ybnolog
8u} Jo sjdoad aul Jo Spasu ay) bulAlas Sem 1 1BL] SINSUS 01 / LOZ Ul 3SIMASUOIN UM
18681 BU] 80UIS UOIUM YDA S8 1 AU JO UONEISdD SU) DBIBPISUOD (UM NPaI) Saa
Jpd 6ZEFFIE/Sa0BWI UOR20)SSHE,HN AOD L0015 B pUADS MMM/ /-d1Y
-spuswabuele |euonelado paanbal uo aaey

Rew siy3 10EdWI 3Y1 pUE pUBWaP 21NNy [ERuslod / @31l paiapIsuod uayl (SIU) ssalppe
o1 a2e|d ul saaunosal / ABs1ens syl pue ‘Gopyoeq Bunsixs ayl 01 Gunnguiued saunssaid
3y} Guipnioul) awweifosd SJUBLSUIELL PUE UONIadsUl U} PAUILLEXS “§I0]5 891}
nd o uawsbeuew sy Jo) £o1od uaLno sy pue sapqisucdsal [eba) s, 12unoD aul
PAUIELISISE MBIAR] SIUL “4I0M JO 30a1d pasnoo) Ajeussiul ue Jjuswsbeuryy 1assy a1
Ipd-zezerue/sabew/uoraopssye N ach uopoo)s epuaba mmm//duay

‘pouad awiy syl Guunp saJyuoq 10 ‘uoonpal Jo Juawebeusw

ayl uaylbuans o1 a0e|d w ind aq pjno2 sainseaw saypung “fue § ‘1eyms parebinsanul
pUE ‘S8Nss| pale|al-a.1ju0g 80Npal pue ssalppe ‘Ayuspl o) suop A)|e3L01SIY

BAEY SI9ULEd S) PUE [IJUNDD SUL 1BYM JUIES| ‘U0SESS JUBIU A1JU0d, [EUOILDELL

33 buunp ybnoJog syl uiylim n.oﬁ ‘Buiddiy-A) “Au=doad o) abewep ‘flayes (euvosiad
"08) SUI80U0D PBIESL-31U0] JO JUSLXS SU] PAYS!QELSS (pUBT g U0 Saluucg

suonesiuebig
[BUIS SSIUNNIOS
sanss| pue spual) Buibiawy -
SUSIA 33IASS BUIUOLS -
SM3INSY SDUBWLIOHUS] -
SM3IASY S0IMSS -

op Aay1 1eym

(d41W) ue|d [e1ouBUIY

Buurewss ay} pue
j2uIqe) Uo ale N Sio[[Iounoy Qm aney ap

aoeld

DWW ®

1pd g6z tr1ie/sabewl/uo1yo0)SSHE,HN A0D U01¥00]5 B pus b MMM/ -dly

“a1nyny 8yl Jo Awouods usslb e Jo SpUBLIBD

BU) 10} 114 S21014I0M [EDO] B 81EBID 0] £3||EA S88] 83U} S50108 30E(d Buiye)

SEM 1B} ¥10M 23U} DAUILUEYS DUE ‘SJUSPISA] §33 | -U0-LO{I0LS J0 SPasu aul

18LU SIU} Jaysym pue sjusLiaaoldw) A2US101443 S0y J0) 3|gejiEAE SEM BUIpUNy
1eyMm pajebisanul jainyng auyy 10} sqof usalg pue Aouaioy3 Abieug awoy

XI0P FEEFFIE/S80EWI/U0I0]5SHE,MN A0D U0IX¥I01S Bpuata mamm//-dly
“(sdiysuoER UINOK Ul INDIABYST SAIDIS0D PUE

1US|O1A PRUILUEKS OS|E M3IA3 3U] PXJU0D SIUL UIYNM) any (JDVIN) uonenoldxg
Py £ausBy-I1Ny AU} JO }I0M UL PUE B3JE SIU} Ul SNJ0) B 0] BuIpes| s10108) Ay}
paulwexa pue ‘Guipienbajes |en)xajuod Jo sanssi 3y} o} yoeoldde pue asuodsal
§/1I2unog auy passasse :sdiysuonelsy ynop, pue buipienbajes jenjxajuog
1pd-gggzi1e/seiewl/uopa01ssye/¥n Aol uolxo01s epuaba mamm//-duy

-21d0} 1y} 0} Buneja) sanss| JY19ads aUY) PUBLSIPUN pUE

4o WbIsul ue UIED 0} PBLWIE MBIABI SIU} 6 L-8LOE PUE G L-FLOZ Usamiaq Auanod
Pl i s8sE810U| 1586610 AUl MES UYDIUM SESIE )Z-d0) SUL Ul PEPN|OU| 813M ‘S88 |
-uo-uop20]s Guipniaul ‘sanUoyINY (2307 S,uciBal ayl Jo Z| |Ie se :Auaand piyg
1pd #FOFF1E/se0e W/ U0001553E,/ 4N A0l U01%0015 BpUaba mam//-dly

"3 Wbu syl 1e s0ed JbL su}

ul 2|qEjIEAE S1 ydiym umsiaoid Ayenb-poob panunuod ainsus 01 sainuoud ainpng
ysiqelsa o] bnos pue ‘Jwwspued 6 L-QIADD 2Ul J0 10edwl syl pue s1apiaold
PE]2EIIUOD §,[12UN0J BUL 10 uoIsiAcId Lo AY[END BY) PISSISSE “5301AIS 8SAUL

10} S]OBJIUOD DES MOU PUE WS)SAS SW0H 1B 8JB7) AU} DAUIWEXS :SILOH 1E 318D
Ipd-g59zFHE/sebewi/uopio0lssye/¥n Aol uolyools epuaba mmm//-duy
‘uoisino.d UanLIp-801MSs, paseq

-Buip|ing [eUCIYpEL WOIL AEME 2A0W E plERY Allenualod pinod yaym aadadsiad
paseq-fUunLULIoD B Wol) £SAIEp JO SDOUISLW SAILELISYE INOJE UIE3| PUE

‘Olwapued &L-a1A090 aul o 1oedu syl wiepadse sapunuoddo Lep saasp 01 285

£q pasn [8poLU JUaLIND 3y} PUElsIapun o} WENos :synpy oy sapunyoddp Aeg
mgm._bwﬂ_ h—.__u:._um

1apiosiq
pue awu)

u_n_cwi a==o> )[eaH pue aue)

ajdoad pue u1pjiyd [B120S NPy

mwwﬁ_._EEOU HOO_QW

oL

nBcumEn_E aIe SUI20U0D o__n_.a hcm “mE ncm EmE mc:m..,__m_u L_E E:ouum 9 U_E ale 55 HE
2INSUD S221ULIWIOY AURMIDS UL pUB 'SanUoLd UO 2pIosp pUB SUDISIDP 2B 13UIgeD S,1Iaunog aylL

saoue|eg pue s)23y)

‘suones|uebio J3Ylo pue S3TIAISS 1I0UNoQ AHUNUILWOD 3y} ‘3|doad [e0o] yim Bunuom siojiouno)
sanjoAUl] 3|doad [B20] Jo SpasU 341 135W S3121j0d puB S$301ASS 3U3 1841 BUIosya S331IWIWo)
Aunnuog s jieunog ay ybnoayl ssoinues Aenb ybiy amzoal 2jdoad |2o0) 12U 2unsua 0] sdipy Aunnios

¢Aunnioas pue M3aIAIaA0 S 1BYM

€2-220z ybnoliog 1919 e 1o} abuajjeyo Aunnios

[19uno? ybnoiog s9a] -U0-UODJI01S

43

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 10

Crime and Disorder Select Committee — Work Programme 2022-2023

Date
(4.30pm Topic Attendance
unless stated)
28 April Review of Bonfires on Public Land
e Cleveland Police Jon Willoughby
26 May Monitoring: Progress Update — Fly-Grazed Marc Stephenson /
Horses Gary Cookland
Review of Bonfires on Public Land
e Cleveland Fire Brigade Craig Strike
e Thirteen Housing Group Michael Hall
30 June Review of Bonfires on Public Land
(informal) e Summary of Evidence / Draft Jamie Stephenson
Recommendations
21 July Monitoring: Progress Update — Protection of Marc Stephenson
Vulnerable Older Residents Living at Home
Monitoring: Progress Update — Fraud Jimmy Jones
Awareness
Review of Bonfires on Public Land
e (Draft) Final Report Clir Norma Stephenson /
Ann Workman
Review of Tree Asset Management
e Scope and Project Plan Dale Rowbotham
29 September Monitoring: Progress Update — CCfA: Joanne Roberts
Obstructive and lllegal Parking around
Whitehouse Primary School
Review of Tree Asset Management
e SBC Community Services Dale Rowbotham / Mark Nozedar
3 November Monitoring: Action Plan — Bonfires on Public Marc Stephenson /
Land Sharon Cooney
Monitoring: Progress Update — Police Marc Stephenson /
Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (T&F) Jon Willoughby
Monitoring: Progress Update — Public Spaces Marc Stephenson
Protection Orders (PSPOs)
Review of Tree Asset Management
e SBC Community Services Dale Rowbotham / Mark Nozedar
e SBC Environment, Leisure & Green Neil Mitchell
Infrastructure
1 December Monitoring: Progress Update — Fly-Grazed Stephen Donaghy /
Horses Gary Cookland

Page 89




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Crime and Disorder Select Committee — Work Programme 2022-2023

Date
(4.30pm
unless stated)

Topic

Attendance

Review of Tree Asset Management
e SBC Community Services

e SBCElected Member Survey Feedback

Dale Rowbotham / Mark Nozedar

Management

Monitoring: Progress Update — Police
Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (T&F)

Monitoring: Progress Update — Public Spaces
Protection Orders (PSPOs)

Monitoring: Progress Update — Bonfires on
Public Land

End-of-Term Report 2019-2023

12 January Review of Tree Asset Management
(informal) e Summary of Evidence / Draft Dale Rowbotham / Mark Nozedar
Recommendations
9 February Review of Tree Asset Management
e (Draft) Final Report Cllr Mike Smith / Reuben Kench
Monitoring: Progress Update — Fraud Jimmy Jones
Awareness
9 March Monitoring: Action Plan — Tree Asset Dale Rowbotham / Mark Nozedar

Marc Stephenson /
Jon Willoughby

Marc Stephenson

Marc Stephenson /
Sharon Cooney

Remaining 2022-2023 Scrutiny Reviews

Monitoring Items (scheduled / to be scheduled)

o Fly-Grazed Horses (Progress Update) — TBC (2023-2024)
e Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (T&F) (Progress Update) — Mar 23
e Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) (Progress Update) — Mar 23

e Bonfires on Public Land (Progress Update) — Mar 23
e Tree Asset Management (Action Plan) — Mar 23

Page 90




	Agenda
	1 Evacuation Procedure
	4 Minutes
	5 Action Plan for Agreed Recommendations - Review of Tree Asset Management
	Appendix 1 - Action Plan - Tree Asset Management

	6 Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed Recommendations - Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (Task & Finish)
	Appendix 1 - Progress Update - Police Communications in Stockton-on-Tees (T&F) (Mar 23)

	7 Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed Recommendations - Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs)
	Appendix 1 - Progress Update - Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) (Mar 23)

	8 Monitoring the Impact of Previously Agreed Recommendations - Bonfires on Public Land
	Appendix 1 - Progress Update - Bonfires on Public Land (Mar 23)

	9 SBC Overview and Scrutiny - End-of-Term Report 2019-2023
	10 Chair's Update and Select Committee Work Programme 2022-2023

